The Oaths of Office Will be Given at 5:55 p.m. for Mayor Pro Tem Johnson and Councilmember Walchak.

ALPENA CITY COUNCIL MEETING
January 04, 2022 - 6:00 p.m.
AGENDA

The Meeting Will be Held In-Person at City Hall. The Meeting Can Be Viewed Virtually with the Login
Information as Follows:

From a Computer, Tablet or Smartphone: https://www.gotomeet.me/CityofAlpena

Dial in Using a Phone: United States: +1 (646) 749-3112

Access Code: 667-050-061

1. Call to Order.

2. Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Approval and Modification of the Agenda.

4, Approve Minutes — Regular and Closed Sessions of December 20, 2021.

5. Citizens Appearing Before Council on Agenda and Non-Agenda Items (Citizens Shall be Allowed a

Maximum of Five (5) Minutes Each to Address Their Concerns. This is the Only Time During a Council
Meeting that Citizens are Allowed to Address the Council).

6. Public Hearing.
7. Consent Agenda.
A. Bills to be Allowed, in the Amount of $237,739.97.
B. Collection of 2022 Property Taxes for Alpena Public Schools.
C. Approval of the November 01, November 15, and December 06, 2021, Minutes, as Amended.

D. Approval of the Ice Fest Event, Organized by the Thunder Bay Arts Council, to be Held Saturday,
February 12, 2022, from 10 a.m. to 4 p.m. and Located at the Mich-e-ke-wis Warming Shelter.

E. Approval of the Prevention of Child Abuse Flags Event, Organized by the Exchange Club, to be Held in
April 2022.

8. Presentations.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021 — Straley Lamp &
Kraenzlein, P.C.

9. Announcements.
10. Mayoral Proclamation.

11. Report of Officers.


https://www.gotomeet.me/CityofAlpena
tel:+16467493112,,667050061

12.
13.
14,

15.

Second Reading of Ordinance 21-468 Which Amends the City of Alpena Zoning Ordinance Article 10 —
Bill Pfeifer, City Attorney.

Communications and Petitions.

Unfinished Business.

New Business.

A. Mayor Pro Tem Appointment.

B. Councilmember Appointments to Boards and Committees.

C. Proposed Conversion of Tennis Courts at McRae Park — Stephen Shultz, City Engineer.

Adjourn.

Rachel Smolinski
City Manager



COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS
December 20, 2021
The Municipal Council of the City of Alpena met in regular session in person on
the above date and was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by the Mayor.
Present: Mayor Waligora, Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, Councilmembers Nowak,
Mitchell and Osmer.
Absent: None.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.
APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Nowak, to
approve the agenda.
Motion carried 5-0.
MINUTES
The minutes of the regular and closed sessions of December 6, 2021, were
approved as printed.
PUBLIC INPUT SESSION
A public input session was conducted regarding the possible elimination of
fluoride in the drinking water production process. There were seven written comments
received by the Clerk and twelve citizens made public comments during the meeting.

No action was taken at this time.
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CONSENT AGENDA
Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, that
the following Consent Agenda items be approved:
A. Bills to be allowed, in the amount of $1,398,869.08.
B. Approval of a budget amendment request to move $500 from the Planning
Department and $500 from the Zoning Department to the Code Enforcement
budget, which is over budget.
C. Approval to not execute the contract with Weinkauf Plumbing & Heating, Inc.
as approved at the December 06, 2021, meeting for City-wide boiler inspections.
Motion carried 5-0.
CITY WIDE PRIDE PROGRAM
Eight City employees were recognized for exhibiting “City Wide Pride” as follows:
DPW Technician, Tim Hepburn; Administrative Assistant for Police and Fire, Tracy
Marquardt; Fire Command, Andy Marceau; Firefighter/Paramedic, Andy Williams; Police
Command, Eric Hamp; Police Patrol, Linnessa Mellberg; Engineering
Assistant/Harbormaster, Shannon Smolinski; and Building Inspector, Steve Hall.
PERPETUAL LOT CARE FUND RECOMMENDATION
Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, to
approve the selection of the earnings option for investment of the perpetual lot care fund
with the Community Foundation of Northeast Michigan and authorize the Mayor and
Clerk to sign on behalf of the City.
Motion carried 5-0.
COUNCIL COMPENSATION RECOMMENDATION
Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Osmer, to

approve the recommendation by the City Compensation Committee to have the wages

for Mayor and Councilmembers remain the same for the next two years.
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Motion carried 5-0.
ORDINANCE 21-467
Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Osmer, to
adopt ordinance 21-467.
Motion carried 3-2.
ORDINANCE 21-468
Attorney Pfeifer delivered the first reading of ordinance 21-468, which amends
the City of Alpena Zoning Ordinance Article 10.
CHANGE TRAFFIC CONTROLS FOR PEDESTRIAN CROSSWALKS
Jessica Luther, Assistant Director of the Alpena County George N. Fletcher
Public Library presented the request on behalf of the library to make some changes to
the intersections of First Avenue at both Water Street and Park Place to ensure
pedestrian safety. The Council directed staff to do research on the changes requested
and get back to Council with a recommendation. No formal action taken.
CHANGES TO CPS 21 GUIDELINES FOR POVERTY EXEMPTION
Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Mitchell, to
amend CPS 21, Guidelines for Poverty Exemption, as presented.
Motion carried 5-0.
BUILDING OFFICIAL CONTRACT
Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Nowak, to
approve the contract with Gilmet Construction Services for assistance with the Planning,
Development, and Zoning Department/Building Department and to allow City Manager

Smolinski to sign the contract.
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Motion carried 5-0.
SECURITY IMPROVEMENTS

Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Councilmember Osmer, to
approve using Meridian Contracting Services without the competitive bid process for the
security upgrades in the Planning, Development, and Zoning lobby.

Motion carried 5-0.

Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, to
approve a budget amendment to transfer $21,220 from fund balance to the Capital-
Building Maintenance fund.

Motion carried 5-0.

RECESS
The Municipal Council recessed from 7:25 p.m. to 7:30 p.m.
RECONVENE IN CLOSED SESSION

Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, to
reconvene in closed session for attorney/client discussion regarding potential sale/use
of City property.

No roll call in error.

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION
The Municipal Council reconvened in open session at 8:34 p.m.
ADJOURN

On motion of Councilmember Osmer, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, the

Municipal Council adjourned at 8:35 p.m.



ATTEST:

Leilan Bruning
Deputy City Clerk
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Council Proceedings
December 20, 2021

Matthew Waligora
Mayor
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VENDOR INVOICE # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT
AIRGAS USA LLC 9984339054 SUPPLIES - EMS DISP 19.17
AIRGAS USA LLC 9120280293 SUPPLIES - EMS DISP 36.85
AIRGAS USALLC 9120666537 SUPPLIES - EMS DISP 52.96
ALL MARINE AND STORAGE LLC 000274 TRAVEL LIFT/STORAGE SVCS - MARINA 1,362.50
ALPENA AREA CHAMBER OF COMM 22032 DINNER TICKETS 240.00
ALPENA COUNTY TREASURER 122121 REFUND TAXES - BD OF REVIEW 157.80
ALPENA COUNTY TREASURER 122121 REFUND TAXES - BD OF REVIEW 333.09
ALPENA DIESEL SERVICE 71566 VEH MAINT - FIRE EQ 433.20
ALPENA POWER COMPANY 010522 ELECTRIC 11,470.91
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC 1PTD-V4QK-HTJ6 SUPPLIES - FIRE/EMS 41.80
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC 1C4L-DQM9-6DMM SUPPLIES - IT 36.22
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC 1NM9-3CW4-JNXF SUPPLIES - IT 356.84
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC 1QC4-VD7T-M6K9 SUPPLIES - BLDG 26.95
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC 1XVT-QMJP-FO931  SUPPLIES - PUBLIC WORKS 27.55
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC 1T91-JC1H-YK4M  SUPPLIES - BLDG 38.86
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC 1J41-Q9YK-HM1V ~ SUPPLIES - PUBLIC WORKS 95.97
ANDREW MARCEAU 121521 TRAVEL EXPENSE/LIC REG - FIRE/EMS 300.06
BELL EQUIPMENT COMPANY P04303 VEH MAINT - EQ 516.11
BERG ASSESSING & CONSULTING INC 21-0000319 ASSESSING CONTRACTED SVCS 01/22 7,083.00
BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC 84312904 SUPPLIES - EMS DISP 1,5621.67
BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC 84331779 SUPPLIES - EMS DISP 1,369.56
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 0161607122121 FAX LINE - PUBLIC SAFETY 39.99
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 0161615122521 FAX LINE - CITY HALL 79.98
CITY OF ALPENA 214-002 1221 SEW/WATER - THOMPSON PK 40.00
CITY OF ALPENA 1016-001 1221 SEW/WATER - MARINA S 226.66
CITY OF ALPENA 1016-002 1221 SEW/WATER - MARINA N 1,519.63
CITY OF ALPENA 1017-001 1221 SEW/WATER - MARINA N 130.42
CITY OF ALPENA 1018-001 1221 SEW/WATER - MARINA 157.62
CITY OF ALPENA 1019-001 1221 SEW/WATER - HARBOR DR 36.66
CITY OF ALPENA 1020-001 1221 SEW/WATER - FISH CLN STN 1,151.86
CITY OF ALPENA 1021-001 1221 SEW/WATER - MARINA RR 280.42
CITY OF ALPENA 1027-001 1221 SEW/WATER - FLOATING DOCKS 904.18
CITY OF ALPENA 1028-001 1221 SEW/WATER - BANDSHELL 76.66
CITY OF ALPENA 4212-001 1221 SEW/WATER - SEWER PLANT 1,706.58
CITY OF ALPENA 9364-001 1221 SEW/WATER - BANDSHELL IRR 40.00
CITY OF ALPENA 4636-001 1221 SEW/WATER - DDA IRR 29.93
CITY OF ALPENA 10344-001 1221 SEW/WATER - DDA 36.66
CLEANING UNLIMITED 834214 MAINT - DDA 300.00
DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC 59958 TRAFF CONTROL MAINT - MAJ ST 118.00
DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC 59959 STORES - SIGNS 44.50
EAGLE SUPPLY CO 120717 SUPPLIES - CITY HALL 69.00
ENERCO CORPORATION 150281 BOILER CHEMICAL TREATMENT/SVCS - PSF 550.00
FAMILY ENTERPRISE EMBROIDERY 65335 UNIFORMS - BLDG 100.05
FASTENAL COMPANY MIALP 188799 VEH MAINT - EQ 99.30
FRONTIER 7324 12/21 TELEPHONE - MARINA 162.61
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 9071584 SUPPLIES - FIRE/EMS 37.88
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 8050630 SUPPLIES - MARINA 5.96
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 8071612 SUPPLIES - FIRE/EMS 77.96
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 7021912 SUPPLIES - MARINA 5.97
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 9021939 MAINT - MARINA 109.45
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 9613275 MAINT - MARINA 125.64
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 8013118 MAINT - MARINA 658.33
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 4013330 MAINT - MARINA 411.77
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 4062112 MAINT - MARINA 14.56
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 4110638 MAINT - MARINA (206.00)
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 3072464 SUPPLIES - CEMETERY 127.12
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2013502 MAINT - MARINA 202.25
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 2110742 MAINT - MARINA (101.00)
HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 8062420 MAINT - MARINA 60.12
HURON ENGINEERING AND SURVEYING INC 4657 TESTING SERVICES - MAJ ST 1,455.00
HURON ENGINEERING AND SURVEYING INC 4674 TOPO SURVEY - MARINA 4,900.00
JULIEANN BAHAN AP21-7147C AMBULANCE REFUND 370.98
KENNETH PIPER 121721 TRAVEL EXPENSE - FIRE/EMS 245.04
L & S TRANSIT MIX 62152 MAINT - PARKS 300.00
LAKESHORE PLUMBING, HEATING & 46609 MAINT - MICH-E-KE-WIS 237.25
LEFAVE PHARMACY INC 121621 SUPPLIES - EMS DISP 107.49
MHR BILLING 4041 BILLING 11/21 - EMS 9,611.27
MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE 4964206 BUSINESS INSURANCE PREMIUM 01-12/22 140,112.00
MICHIGAN PIPE & VALVE T018592 STORES - FERNCO 490.00
MID MICHIGAN MEDICAL CENTER-ALPENA 562 SUPPLIES - EMS DISP 595.00
NEMCOG 10-738-211215 PLANNING SERVICES 2,178.11
PITNEY BOWES INC 1019623311 POSTAGE METER RENT 10-12/21 176.97
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R W MERCER COMPANY INC 197965 MAINT - MARINA 250.00
RED BRICK TAP & BARREL LLC 122921 MAIN GRANT REIMB - DDA 25,000.00
SEVAN KINC 303 11/21 VEH MAINT - EQ 12.00
SEVAN K'INC 313 11/21 VEH MAINT - POLICE 114.53
SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP. B14495953 ADOBE LICENSES - IT 5,431.80
STERICYCLE INC 8000604701 SHRED CONTAINER RENT/SVC 11-12/21 166.22
STEVEN HALL 122821 REIMB TOOL PURCH - BLDG 15.87
STRALEY LAMP & KRAENZLEIN PC 34739 MONTHLY FEE 11/21 4,015.00
TELEFLEX LLC 9504776734 SUPPLIES - EMS DISP 669.49
TELEFLEX LLC 9504776736 SUPPLIES - EMS DISP 301.02
TELEFLEX LLC 9504838705 SUPPLIES - EMS DISP 604.50
TENURGY LLC ALP-124 UTILITY RATE SAVINGS 12/21 1,354.62
THE SHERWIN WILLIAMS CO 8055-4 MAINT - CITY HALL 99.53
THE UPS STORE 5054 122121 SHIPPING FEES 89.19
TIM CORN 122221 WORK APPAREL ALLOW - PW 114.46
VERIZON WIRELESS 9894721668 CELL PHONES 678.80
VERIZON WIRELESS 9894721669 CELL PHONES/IPADS 2,133.68
WALMART-CAPITAL ONE 111021 SUPPLIES - PUBLIC WORKS 6.67
WALMART-CAPITAL ONE 102621 SUPPLIES - POLICE 115.84
WEINKAUF PLUMBING & HEATING INC 16167 BLDG MAINT - FIRE/EMS 280.00
WEST SHORE FIRE INC 26398 VEH MAINT - FIRE EQ 406.76
WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP E2128508 UNIFORMS - FIRE/EMS 88.12
WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP E2134546 SUPPLIES - FIRE/EMS 70.97
Total: 237,739.97



ALPENA Profie of a 21st Century Graduate

P U b li C S C h [e]e] | S challenges all students to become lifelong learners and productive citizens.

Leslie Reynolds, Administrative Assistant

2373 Gordon Road, Alpena, MI 49707
Continuous T: 989-358-5042 | reynoldsl@alpenaschools.com

Learner

December 14, 2021

Ms. Anna Soik CITY OF Al PENA

City of Alpena Clerk CLERK/ TREQSIFH\'B‘!;:CVR
208 North First Avenue sl
Alpena, MI 49707

Enclosed is a copy of a resolution adopted by the Board of Education of the Alpena
Public Schools of Alpena and Presque Isle Counties. The Board, pursuant to statute,
has determined to impose a summer property tax levy in 2022 of 100 percent of
school district property taxes, including debt service.

Adoption of this resolution allows the District to collect summer taxes provided the
details can be worked out with the taxing units; and therefore, the Board has adopted
such resolution for many years as a matter of course. It does not obligate you to
collect summer taxes.

We recognize these are difficult economic times for all local governments, and that it
may not be feasible given our budgetary constraints, as well as yours, to come to an
agreement that is mutually beneficial. However, if the City of Alpena is interested in
pursuing an agreement this year, please contact the Board in care of the undersigned
for the purpose of negotiating an agreement for reasonable expenses of collecting
the District’s summer tax levy. If the City of Alpena does not agree to collect the
District’'s summer tax levy, please notify the Board of Education in care of the
undersigned by January 15, 2022 either by letter or e-mail correspondence.

Sincerely, W

Leslie Reynolds
Secretary to the Board of Education

Enclosure: APS Annual Summer Tax Resolution



Annual Summer Tax Resolution

Alpena Public Schools (the “District”)

A regular meeting of the board of education of the District (the “Board") was held at
Lincoln Elementary School, 309 W. Lake St., Alpena, MI 49707, within tke boundaries of the
District, on the 22nd day of November, 2021, at 5:30 o’clock in the p.m.

. The meeting was called to order by Ned Heath, President.

Present: Members: Ned Heath, Gordon Snow, Tom Hilberg, Eric Lawson, Ken Gembel, and Anna
Melnhardt, Trustees )

Absent: Members: Stacey Parr, Trustee

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member Anna Meinhardt
and supported by Member Eric Lawson; ‘

WHEREAS, this Board previously adopted a resolution to impose a summer tax levy to
collect 100% of annual school property taxes, including debt service, upon property located
within the District and continuing from year-to-year until specifically revoked by the Board.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:

L. The Board, pursuant to 1976 PA 451, as amended (the Revised School Code), invokes
for 2022 its previously adopted ongoing resolution imposing a summer tax levy of all of annual
school property taxes, including debt service, upon property located within the District and
continuing from year-to-year until specifically revoked by the Board and requests that each city
and/or township in which the District is located collect those summer taxes.

2. The Superintendent or designee is authorized and directed to forward to the governing
body of each city and/or township in which the District is located a copy of this Board’s_
resolution imposing a summer property tax levy on an ongoing basis and a copy of this fesolution
requesting that each such city and/or township agree to collect the summer tax levy for 2022 in
the amount specified in this resolution. Such forwarding of the resolutions and the Tequest to
collect the summer tax levy shall be performed so that they are received by the appropriate
governing bodies before Janvary 1, 2022,

3. Pursuant to and in accordance with Section 1613(1) of the Revised School Code, the
Superintendent or designee is authorized and directed to negotiate on behalf of the District with
the governing body of each city and/or township in which the District is located for the
reasonable expenses for collection of the District’s summer tax levy that the city and/or township
may bill under MCL 380.1611 or MCL 380.1612. Any such proposed agreement shall be
brought before this Board for its approval or disapproval. '

4. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of
this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded.

Ayes: Members: Hilberg, Snow, Gembel, Mefnhardt, Lawson, Heath

Secretary, Board of %ucation

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Bducation of Alpena
Public Schools, Alpena and Presque Isle Counties, hereby certifies that the foregoing constitutes a
true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at a regular meeting held on
November 22, 2021, the original of which is part of the Board’s minutes. The undersigned
further certifies that notice of the meeting was given to the public pursuant to the provisions of
the “Open Meetings Act” (Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended).

Secretary, Board of %ucation

Nays: Members: None
Resolution declared: adopted,




D peria

Memorandum

Clerk/Treasurer
To: Mayor Waligora and Municipal Council
From: Anna Soik, City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director ‘0(7
Date: December 22, 2021
Re: Council Minutes

It was discovered that there was an error in the minutes. For the November 01, 2021,
November 15, 2021, and December 06, 2021, minutes, the statement “motion carried 5-
0" was written under the approval of the minutes. This was an oversight. It is the practice
of the Municipal Council to not make a motion to approve minutes, and therefore that
statement should not have been in the minutes, as it never happened. | apologize for the
error and oversight.

It is my recommendation as the City Clerk to remove the statement “Motion carried 5-0”
from the November 01, 2021, November 15, 2021, and December 06, 2021, minutes.



COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS
November 15, 2021
The Municipal Council of the City of Alpena met in regular session in person on
the above date and was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by the Mayor.
Present: Mayor Waligora, Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, Councilmembers Nowak,
Mitchell and Osmer.
Absent: None.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.
APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Nowak, to
approve the agenda.
Motion carried 5-0.
MINUTES
The minutes of the regular and closed sessions of November 01, 2021, and
special session of November 09, 2021, were approved as printed.
Motion carried 5-0
CONSENT AGENDA
Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, that
the following Consent Agenda items be approved:

A. Bills to be allowed, in the amount of $435,102.91.

B. School Liaison Officer Agreement.

C Council appointment of Ashley Wilmot-Peterson to the Planning
Commission for a three-year term expiring on December 01, 2024.

D Council reappointment of Elizabeth Littler and Vernie Nethercut to the
Wildlife Sanctuary Board for a 3-year term expiring on November 1, 2024.
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Motion carried 5-0.
PERPETUAL LOT CARE FUND
A presentation was made by Anna Soik, Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director, and
Patrick Heraghty, Executive Director of the Community Foundation of Northeast
Michigan, to gift the funds of the Perpetual Lot Care Fund to the foundation. In turn, the
City will receive interest earnings which can be used to cover expenses related to the
operation and maintenance of the cemetery. Two different options were presented by
Mr. Heraghty and a recommendation from City Manager Smolinski and Clerk Soik will
be made at the next Council meeting.
ORDINANCE 21-465
Atiornéy Pfeifer delivefed the first reading of ordinance 21-465 which amends the
City of Aipena zoning ordinance articles 2, 5 and 7.
| ORDINANCE 21-466
Attorney Pfeifer delivered the first reading of ordinance 21-466 which amends the
City of Alpena zoning map.
RURAL DEVELOPMENT GRANT
Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, to
reject the potable water system bids for being overbudget.
Motion carried 5-0.
Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, to
approve the submittal of the Rural Development Fund Grant for the remodeling of the
Alpena Marina shop utilizing the $20,000 budget surplus and commit the remainder of

$15,000 during the Capital Improvement Plan process.
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Motion carried 5-0.
DDA PARKING RECOMMENDATIONS
Anne Gentry, Executive Director of the DDA, presented options, for the Municipal
Council to consider, which pertain to parking in the downtown as the result of concerns
of available on-street parking. Those options include implementing an escalating fine
system for repeat offenders; prohibit overnight parking on streets within the DDA district
year-round; and pay-for-parking within the downtown district. The Municipal Council
requested additional information from Ms. Gentry on opening some parking lots year-
round and additional information from the DDA Board and Parking Committee for
implementing parking meters in the downtown.
ADJOURN

On motion of Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, the

Municipal Council adjourned at 7:41 p.m.

Matthew Waligora
Mayor

ATTEST:

Anna Soik
City Clerk



COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS
November 01, 2021
The Municipal Council of the City of Alpena met in regular session in person on
the above date and was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by the Mayor.
Present: Mayor Waligora, Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, Counciimembers Nowak,
Mitchell and Osmer.
Absent: None.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.
APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Nowak, to
approve the agenda.
Motion carried 5-0.
MINUTES
The minutes of the regular session of October 18, 2021, were approved as
printed.
Motion-carried-5-0
CONSENT AGENDA
Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, that
the following Consent Agenda items be approved:
A. Bills to be allowed, in the amount of $391,887.81.

B. Mayoral appointment of Jaclynn Krawczak and Carol Lund to the
Compensation Committee for a 5-year term expiring on November 1,
2026.

. Mayoral reappointment of Clayton VanWagoner to the Planning
Commission for a 3-year term expiring on November 1, 2024.
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D. Council reappointment of Elizabeth Littler and Vernie Nethercut to the
Wildlife Sanctuary Board for a 3-year term expiring on November 1, 2024,

Motion carried 5-0.
o ALPENA COUNTY HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN

Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, to
approve resolution 2021-19, which adopts the 2021 Alpena County Hazard Mitigation
Plan.

Motion carried 5-0.

AMBULANCE RATES

Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Councilmember Mitchell, to
approve the amended fee schedule for ambulance rates, as presented, effective
November 2, 2021.

Motion carried 5-0.

PLANET/HISTORY WALK PROPOSAL

Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Osmer, to
authorize City Manager Smolinski to submit a letter of support on behalf of the Council,
and placement of the signs to be determined by City Manager Smolinski and staff.

Motion carried 5-0.

RECESS
The Municipal Council recessed from 6:18 p.m. to 6:23 p.m.
RECONVENE IN CLOSED SESSION

Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, to

reconvene in closed session to discuss an update regarding proposed litigation with the

Alpena Prototype Biorefinery, LLC, American Process, Inc., and GranBio LLC; and also,
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to discuss the water and sewer litigation.
Motion carried 5-0.
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION
The Municipal Council reconvened in open session at 6:41 p.m.
ADJOURN

On motion of Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, the

Municipal Council adjourned at 6:42 p.m.

Matthew Waligora
Mayor

ATTEST:

Anna Soik
City Clerk



COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS
December 06, 2021
The Municipal Council of the City of Alpena met in regular session in person on
the above date and was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by the Mayor.
Present. Mayor Waligora, Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, Councilmembers Nowak,
Mitchell and Osmer.
Absent: None.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.
APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Osmer, to
approve the agenda.
Motion carried 5-0.
MINUTES
The minutes of the regular session of November 15, 2021, was approved as
printed.
Metion-carried-56-0
CONSENT AGENDA
Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, that
the following Consent Agenda items be approved:
A. Bills to be allowed, in the amount of $631,763.68.
B. Approval of consulting services for the ARPA grant.
C. Council appointment of Nickolas Lee to the Recreational Advisory Board
for a three-year term expiring on December 01, 2024.

D. Approval of the 2022 Council meeting schedule.
E. Approval of the Memorial Day, Fourth of July and Christmas parades held
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within the city limits in 2022.

F. Approval of a budget amendment request to reduce General Fund
balance by $11,322 due to the discovery of a budget error.

G. Approval of a budget amendment request to increase General Fund
balance by $22,662 due to the personal property tax reimbursement bing
higher than budgeted and to amend the budget after a review of the
October monthly financial reports.

H. PA 152 insurance opt-out.

Alpena County Youth and Recreation Grant agreement for Culligan Plaza.

J. Economic development administration grant application submittal and
resolutions.

Motion carried 5-0.
PROPERTY AND LIABILITY INSURANCE RECOMMENDATION
Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, to
award the Property and Liability bid to the Michigan Municipal League for an annual
premium of $139,948.
Motion carried 5-0.
ORDINANCE 21-465
Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Mitchell, to
adopt ordinance 21-465.
Motion carried 5-0.
ORDINANCE 21-466
Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Nowak, to
adopt ordinance 21-466.
Motion carried 5-0.
ORDINANCE 21-467
Attorney Pfeifer delivered the first reading of ordinance 21-467, which amends

chapter 18, section 18-1, of the medical marihuana facilities and adult-use marihuana
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establishments.
COSTS AND VOTER TURNOUT OF THE NOVEMBER ELECTION

Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Mitchell, to
receive and file the report of costs and voter turnout of the November 2, 2021 election,
as presented.

Motion carried 5-0.

PRESENTATION ON FLUORIDE IN WATER

A representative of the SUEZ Engineering Department and Technical Services
delivered a presentation, which was a study to discontinue fluoridation and action items.
The next step will be to distribute information to the public.

CITY-WIDE BOILER INSPECTION BID
Bids were received and opened on November 15, 2021, for the city-wide boiler

inspections. The bid received is as follows:

Description Units 2022 2023 2024
City Hal Mechanical Room (two units)  $/year $160 $165 $170
Public Safety Boilers Room (two units) $/year $160 $165 $170
Second Ave Bridge House | $/year $80 $83 $85

Wastewater Treatment Plant

Mechanical Room (two units) $lyear $160 $165 $170
Wastewater Treatment Plant

Steam Boiler $lyear $80 $83 $85

Woodward Trailhead Boiler $lyear $120 $124 $128
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Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Councilmember Osmer, to
award the city—Wide jboiler inspection contract to Weinkauf Plumbing & Heating Inc. at
the"price‘s‘ listed abdvé.
Motion carried 5-0.
BAGGED LEAF AND LAWN MATERIAL PICK UP BID
2022 2023 2024
A-1 Tree Service, Alpena $10,100 $10,100 $10,100
Total per year $40,400 $40,400 $40,400
Prices afe per pick up, four pick ups per year.
Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Nowak, to
award the contract for leaf pick up to A-1 Tree Service for the listed prices for 2022,
2023 and 2024
Motion carried 5-0.
o | RECESS
The Municipal Council recessed from 7:18 p.m. to 7:20 p.m.
RECONVENE IN CLOSED SESSION
Moved by Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, to
reconvene in closed session for attorney/client discussion of the sale of city-owned
property located at US-23 North.
Motion carried 5-0.

RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION

The Municipal Council reconvened in open session at 7:49 p.m.
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SALE OF CITY-OWNED PROPERTY LOCATED AT US-23 NORTH

Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Nowak, to
approve, as written, the purchase and sale agreement between GT Equities LLC and
the City of Alpena, and authorize Mayor Waligora to sign on behalf of the City.

Motion carried 5-0.

Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Mitchell, to
approve the buy and sell agreement between PCl and the City of Alpena with two
modifications: (1) requirement that the City provide, at the City's expense, a survey
within 30 days of the date this agreement is siéned under section 5 would be removed;
and (2) the date for the written acceptancé offer will be e;ttended ‘u‘nder paragraph 24
from December 1, 2021, to December 10, 2021, and to authbrize Mayor Waligora to
sign on behalf of the City.

Motion carried 5-0.

Moved by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, seconded by Councilmember Osmer, to
approve, as written, the agreement between WSSA LLC and the City of Alpena, for the
purchase and sale of the property noted in the agreement with one ghange: the City
would reserve the discretion to move the proposed three acre site from thé north side of
North Industrial Highway, as presented in the purchase and sale agreemeht, to the
south side of North Industrial Highway and further, once again, that Mayor Waligora
would have the authority to sign on behalf of the City of Alpena.

Motion carried 5-0.

ADJOURN

On motion of Councilmember Nowak, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Johnson, the



Mdnicipéi Council adjourned at 7:53 p.m.

ATTEST:

Anna Soik
City Clerk
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Matthew Waligora
Mayor
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Application/Reservation for City Park/City Property Use

Beginning Time 10:00 @Q

Day/Date Needed: Sarday 02/12/22
day of week dd/mm/yy Q@
Ending Timei-_o_o_
Event Description: lce Camival (e Fec+ )
Thunder Bay Arts Council

Name of Organization:

Name of Applicant: Tim Kuehnlein

Phone #: 989/356-6678

Applicant Address:

127 W. Chisholm St., Alena, Ml

Email: ©ffice@thunderbayarts.org

Applicant Signature: W MeClon

Date: December 14, 2021

Reservation of a facility does not guarantee full use of other facilities with the city park/city property.

R e L

Please check the facilities requested below:

Bay View Park

[C]Tennis Courts ($8.00/court/hr)
[(JBasketball Courts ($8.00/court/hr)
[CIBand Shell ($200 refundable deposit)

McRae Park®
[CIShelter*
[ Tennis Courts ($8.00/court/hr)

[JBasketball Courts (58.00/court/hr)
*Contact the McRae Park Association - see footnote

Migh-e-ke-wis

Warming Shelter (includes picnic tables & refuse
barrels)
Fee: $175/day (plus $100 security deposif)

Starlite Beach

[CJ Pavilion (includes picnic tables, restroom
building & refuse barels)
Fee: $75/day (plus $100 refundable securlty deposit)

(] Culligan Plaza

Fee: $65 per maximum 4 hour event (open gathering area) -
approved by City of Alpena and DDA

[J Duck Park
Fee: $65/day (open gathering area)

Fee: $50/day

[J Alpena Regional Trailhead

(includes pavilion, restroom building & refuse barrels) L island Park
Fee: $50 (plus $50 refundable security deposit) No fee

(] City Hall Parking Lot ] City Marina’

Fishing Tournaments: §75

[] Other (please indicate city park/city property or facility):

Please return completed form with fee (by check) to:
City of Alpena Clerk's Office, 208 N First Avenue, Alpena MI 49707
events@alpena.mi.us

All questions can be directed fo the City Clerk at 989-354-1720 M - F from 8 am to 5 pm

*To reserve facllifies at McRae Park, please contact the McRae Park Assoclation: Phil Heath 989.340.0695

City of Alpena Application for City Park/City Property Use Permit
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1. PURPOSE: The purpose and character of the proposed event is as follows:

Purpose is to hold an ice sulpture and winter camival event

2. ATTENDEES: Applicant estimates that the maximum number of people expected at the event for
each day is:

estimate 500 people maximum

3. PARK/PROPERTY POLICY: The applicant hereby agrees to observe and obey the minimum
requirements contained in the Use Policy for City of Alpena Owned or Controlled Properties and Parks
and the laws of the City of Alpena, County of Alpena, and the State of Michigan. The applicant
furthermore agrees to cooperate in all manners with law enforcement officials as the need may arise.

4. COST RECOVERY: The City reserves the right to recover costs from the applicant for any and all work
incurred by the City resultant from the event and failure on the part of the applicant to comply with
this policy. If warranted by City staff, a bond may be required in advance of the event.

5. HOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE: The Person shall defend, pay on behalf of, and hold harmless the City of
Alpena, its employees, agents, public officials, and volunteers from and against any and all losses,
damages, expenses, claims, suits, and demand of whatever nature resulting from damages or injuries,
including death, to any persons or property, and including any claim for losses incurred by reason of
project delay, impact (soft) costs, or other intangible losses that might result from Person late or
defective performance, caused by or arising out of any action, omission, or operation performed in
connection with work attributable to this contract; provided, however, the Person shall not be
required to indemnify the City of Alpena, its employees, agents, public officials, and volunteers for
any damages or injuries, including death, to any person or property caused solely and exclusively by
the negligence of the City of Alpena, its employees, public officials, and volunteers.

Applicant Signature: mgc JA.,_./ Date: December 14, 2021
Debeool e Clule

For Office Use Only:

Received by City Clerk's Office: 3
6“"‘— %a’lﬂ&fﬂéi Dote:lz’ /L/U

Approved by City Manager:
%M Date: /oL// ;L?/.,L,

Approved by City Council (if applicable):

By: Date:

Contact DPW at (989) 354-1780 to make arrangements fo pick up the key (for Bandshell & Mich-e-ke-wis
rentals). Office hours for DPW are Monday - Friday, 7 a.m. to 3:30 p.m (1001 Long Lake Avenue)

IF YOU DO NOT PICK UP THE KEY PRIOR TO YOUR RENTAL DATE, THERE WILL BE A CHARGE FOR A CITY EMPLOYEE
TO BE CALLED OUT TO GET YOU A KEY. THE AMOUNT CHARGED WILL BE APPROXIMATELY $70.00, AND IT WILL BE
DEDUCTED FROM YOUR DEFOSIT.
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Please use this page o provide a detalled description of the proposed event and event
management plan. Include information which describe the plans for the items discussed in the
following “Event Requirements” section Including security personnel, restroom facilities, food
service, medical/personnel faclifies, trash disposal, access and fraffic conirol, parking,
tllumination, nolse, and any other Issues belng planned for.

Management Plan for Alpena ICE Fest 2022

included as attachment is a graphic of how the Alpena ICE Fest will be laid out at Mich-e-ke-wis Park as
well as a tentative poster for promotional purposes. Below Is narrative addressing page 3 of the park
application event requirements:

The whole event will take place from 9AM-4PM at Mich-e-ke-wis Park on Saturday, February 12, 2022
and then transfer to downtown Alpena from 4-9PM. The event is being sponsored by Thunder Bay Arts,
First Congregational UCC Comstock Fund, Alpena Alcona Area Credit Union, SOME CPA, Shaun
Michael Osbomne, City of Alpena DDA and Alpena Fire Department.

The feature of the event, ice sculptures, will be placed between the Alpena Letters sculpture and the
pavition extending out into the field. A combination of sill sculptures and dueling sculpture
performances will take place. Ice Creations of Napoleon, Chlo has been contracted for services.

Electricity from the pavilion should be sufficient. Bathrooms at the pavilion should be sufficlent. Parking
should be sufficlent utilizing nearby parking lots.

Farmers Market will be held from 9-1, maybe even later at this point, as they are a partner in this
endeavor. While they will provide traditional foods choices within their legal limits/restrictions, there will
be one or two fully licensed food trucks available (pending) located in the parking lot near the pavilion.

Varlous activities will be provided for families including, preliminarily, ice bowling and amateur snow
shoe races, cross country skiing, fat tire bike races and sled dog races, These activities will take place
along the length of the park running adjacent to the US 23 - center field.

A sa;all Isnow hill is being planned for tobogganing near the rear of the pavilion atong the back, stone
parking lot.

Horse and wagon rides are planned for the loop In the stone parking area behind the pavillon near the
volleyball courts.

Finally, a large bonfire will be hosted by the City of Alpena Fire Department under the supervision of
Andy Marceau who is also serving on the planning committee. This will be located center field.

At this point, there is no need for security, medical or traffic contro! beyond what the City Fire
Department wlll plan for the purposes of the bonfire. Nor is there need for illumination or noise
provisions.

We may need extra garbage cans to maintain a clean environment.

Insurance for this event will be covered by the TBA event policy with Alpena Agency.

City of Alpena Application for City Park/City Property Use Permit Page 3 of 9






Event Requirements

Applicant shall determine if any of the following are necessary considering the scope of the event and
shall provide details of the provisions being made for each. Attach a detailed explanation, including
diagrams and drawings where applicable, of the applicant’s plan to provide for the following. City staff
shall then review and make recommendations or requirements. Please include emergency contact
information with drawings. If any of the following items are anticipated as being needed at the event,
then submission of this form shall be made to the City Clerk’s office 45 days prior to the event.

D 1. Security Personnel — Are security personnel needed for the event? O @
Yes No
If yes, the sponsor shall employ, at its own expense, such security personnel as are necessary and
sufficient to provide for the adequate security and protection of the maximum number of persons at
the event and for the preservation of order and protection of property in and around the site of the
event. No permit shall be issued unless the City of Alpena Police Department is satisfied that such
necessary and sufficient security personnel will be provided by the sponsor for the duration of the
event,

Staff Comments: Staff shall indicate the name of the department making each recommendation

No concerns-Eric Hamp

SECURITY

I:] 2. Restroom Facilities — Are existing restrooms sufficient to meet the needs of the event? @ O
Yes No
If no, then provide a description of the restroom facilities being planned for based on the number of
persons to attend. City staff will review and determine if adequate. The sponsor shall provide for liquid
waste disposal in accordance with all rules and regulations pertaining thereto by the Alpena County
Health Department. An executed agreement shall be provided to the City between the sponsor and a
licensed pumper or hauler, which agreement will assure proper, effective, and frequent removal of
liquid waste from the premises so as to neither create a nuisance nor menace to the public health,
Recommended facilities are as follows:
FACILITIES MALE _FEMALE _UNISEX
TOILETS 1:200 1:75 1:75
URINALS 1:150 N/A

Staff Comments: Staff shall indicate the name of the department moking each recommendation

RESTROOMS
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Food Service — Will food service be available at the event? @ O

Yes No
If catering is made available on the premises, it shall be delivered only through caterers or vendors
licensed and in accordance with provisions of the local health department being District Health
Department #4, (989) 356-4507. (Potluck dinners do not count as “catering”)

a. Has there been a food service permit issued? O

Y N
b. Will adequate water supply be available? é ¢
es NO

c.  Will there be a food truck or mobile food vendor at the event? @ O
Yes No

ff shallindicate the name of the department making each recommendation

Medical Personnel/Facilities — Does the event require medical personnel/facilities? O @

Yes No
If yes, the sponsor shall provide for medical personnel and facilities. The kind, location, staff strength,
medical and other supplies and equipment of such facilities shall be approved by the Fire Chief for the
City of Alpena. An ambulance may be required for events including, but not limited to, running races
and triathlons. Such ambulance will be located with unencumbered access to the persons in
attendance at the event and a clear route of egress from the event conducive to rapid travel shall be
maintained at all times.

g each recommendation
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Trash Disposal — Does the event require additional trash disposal? @ O
Yes No

If yes, the sponsor shall provide for solid waste storage on, and disposal from, the premises. Storage
shall be in covered, fly tight and rodent-proof containers, provided in sufficient quantity to
accommodate the number of persons attending the event.

mments: Staff shall indic the nome ¢ artment making each recommendation

[Je

ACCESS/TRAFFIC

Access & Traffic Control - Is access/traffic control required?
Yes No

If yes, the sponsor shall provide for ingress and egress from the premises so as to ensure an orderly
flow of traffic onto and off from the premises. Traffic lanes and other space shall be provided and kept
open for access by ambulance, fire equipment, and other emergency services as required by the City
of Alpena Fire Chief and Police Chief. The sponsor may be required to erect a barrier completely
enclosing the site. Such barrier shall have sufficient height and strength as will preclude persons in
excess of the maximum permissible persons from gaining access and such barrier shall have sufficient
gates, properly located, so as to provide ready and safe ingress and egress. The sponsor shall insure
that public sidewalks, streets, alleys, and rights-of-way are not blocked or obstructed by the
participants at the event, their vehicles, or their activities. The City reserves the right to establish a
capacity for the area requested to be utilized by an event.

 Staff Comments: Staff shall inc name of the ent making eac mendation
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D?. Parking - Is adequate parking available? @ O

Yes No
At each city park/city property, either on-street or off-street parking is provided. Parking shall only be
allowed in designated and maintained parking areas. The sponsor shall provide for and ensure orderly
parking and shall maintain such parking and traffic patterns within the parking area as to assure that
each vehicle shall have a clear route by which to leave the parking area at all times.

artment moking each recommendation

PARKING

D 8. Illumination - Is additional illumination needed? O @
Yes No

If yes, the sponsor shall provide additional electrical illumination of all occupied areas to ensure the
safety and comfort of all event attendees if required by the Police Chief.

f Commer indicate the nome artment ma

ILLUMINATION

I:] 9. Noise - Is an exception to the City of Alpena noise ordinance needed? O @
Yes No

See the Alpena Code of Ordinances Chapter 54, Article 1, Section 54-1, subsection e for exceptions.

jotion’
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Sﬂdlowski, Kate

From: McNamara, Sean

Sent: Monday, December 20, 2021 8:26 AM
To: Szydlowski, Kate

Subject: Re: Ice Carnival

I've tried. | talk to Steve about it not letting me save in the prompt it gives me about someone else having an open or
something. But | have no issue with it

Sent from my iPhone

On Dec 20, 2021, at 8:14 AM, Szydlowski, Kate <kates@alpena.mi.us> wrote:

Could you guys check the Ice Carnival application?

Thanks,

Kate Szydlowski
Administrative Assistant
City of Alpena
989-354-1727
kates@alpena.mi.us
<imageO01.png>



I:l 10. Other — Are there other needs anticipated? O @

Yes No
If so, please describe those needs and proposed provisions here:
(examples include but are not limited to liquor licenses, signs/banners, animal areas, lines painted on the
grass to mark event areas, portable generators/cables, etc.)

Prior to issuance of a permit, the City of Alpena may impose any other condition(s) reasonably
calculated to protect the health, safety, welfare, and property of persons attending the event, persons
visiting the city park/city property, or citizens of the City of Alpena.

epartment mmendation

OTHER

I:ll 1. Insurance — Has proof of insurance been submitted? @ o addac b 'L

Yes No
Depending on the nature of the event and liability associated with the event, the sponsor, individual,
applicant, or entity holding an event on city property may be required to have liability insurance in the
amount of, at minimum, one million dollars ($1,000,000) and shall name the City of Alpena as an
additional insured.

INSURANCE
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Event Rules and Regulations

1.

Reservations for use of city parks/city properties and facilities may be taken for the current calendar
year or the following calendar year.

Reservations may be made by mail or in person at the City Clerk’s Office, City Hall, 208 N, First Avenue,
Alpena, MI 49707, (989) 354-1720 or may be sent to gvents@alpena.mi.us.

Reservations are not confirmed nor considered complete until payment and deposit is received with
reservation application or confirming letter is sent.

All applications will be considered on a first received basis, per the appropriate tier per the Use Policy
for City of Alpena Owned or Controlled Properties and Parks.

Persons must be 18 years or older to reserve a facility. Applicants under the age of 18 may apply for
events and may be approved on a case by case basis.

Patrons are responsible for keeping the city park/city property clean by leaving the surrounding
grounds free of litter after the event. Additional bags may be located in the bottom of the trash
receptacle. If the patron does not clean up the litter produced by the event, further fees may be
assessed and/or future access to city park/city property and facilities through reservations may be
prohibited. Any deposit collected is to be returned if patrons have cleaned their area and taken
additional refuse with them and no damages are evident.

If picnic tables are relocated for the event, they must be returned to thelir original location.

8. All advertising shall be limited to Identification and/or location of the event. All sales of merchandise

10.

11.

or other material is prohibited unless allowed by permit. Please see the signage section of the Use
Policy for City of Alpena Owned or Controlled Properties and Parks.

Use of the city park/city property or facilities for profit by any individual, entity, or organization shall
be prohibited or allowed by permit only. For information on permits for food trucks and similar
establishments, please contact the City Manager.

The permit holder further agrees to pay the City of Alpena for damages to the property caused by any
person during the permitted event.

The City of Alpena Parks are open from 8 AM to 11 PM, unless otherwise posted at the maln vehicle
entrance to the park. Variance to this shall be authorized as outlined in the permit.

General Park Rules (Please see Ch. Section 58-62 for the full list of prohibited acts)

1,
2.

Glass is prohibited In City Parks.

Owners must ensure that their pets are controlled per City of Alpena ordinances and the owners shall
be responsible for cleaning up any droppings.

All motorized vehicles must remain in designated parking areas unless expressly approved in the
permit. ' s

Smoking of tobacco in any form (Including vaping) is prohibited in City parks except in designated
areas at the Municipal Marlna and the Woodward Avenue Trailhead.

Dangerous animals are prohibited in City Parks. All dogs must be on a leash. See Section 10-13

City parks shall not be used to dump, deposit or leave any bottles, broken glass, ashes, paper, boxes,
cans, dirt, rubbish, waste, garbage or refuse or other trash.

By submitting a signed application for a City Park/City Property Use Permit, the applicant agrees to adhere to the rufes
stated above.
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ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE " \aI0er202t |

BELOW. THIS CERTIFIGATE OF INSURANCE DOES: NOT GONSTIT

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THISCERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFIGATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE: DOES NOT AFFIRVATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY -AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER: THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE 'POLICIES
UTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE (SSUING’ INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder In lleu.of such endorsement(s).

IMPORTANT: If tho cortificate holder Is an-ADDITIONAL INSURED, tho policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION.IS WAIVED, subject to
tha terms: and conditions: of tho. policy, certaln policfas miay require ah endcfsement. A statément on'this certificate doss not confer righits to-the

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING' ANY REQUIREMENT,

X‘gqnucea no% In. 'nane: — Mary Buza
10255 Third Auamos _-E%P%oasw-m 75 | e ne: 989-354-8974
Qliien_awurglzae‘mz AbpREes: MBuza@alpenaagency.com
eler on FO! G COVERAGE NAICe
msurera;: The Clficinhati Inslrance.Co. 10677
INSURED- Thunder Bay‘Arts Councll, Inc. INSURER s
Michelte Miller ' [ Rsurer c:
127-W. Ghisholm St. ————
Alpéna; MI:-48707 LINSURERD ;
. INSURER F2
_COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER!: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS: IS TO'CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF [NSlJRAN(EI_EE RLIHSEE;)CB&%&V:FBAENE& ISSUED TO THE'INSURED- NAMED: ABOVE- FOR THE POLICY. PERIOD:
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY, THE POLICIES DESCRIBED . HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL-THE TERMS,

CTONTRACT OR GTHER' DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS:

EXCLUSIONS:AND CONDITICNS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS-SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUGED BYPAID.CLAIMS,

=R TYPE OF INGURANCE NsD| FOLICY NUMBER | (MwoBYYYY) |- LTS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY . ACH OCCURRERCE. $ 1,000;000(
|- cuamsaiace [~ ocowm NP0262278 0772512021 | 077252022 %@F@ {Eaceamence) | $ 100,000}
| | MED EXP (Any.onoperson) | § 5,00
'PERSONAL 4:ADV INURY' | ¢ 1,000,000
| GENT AGGREGATE LINIT ARPUIES FER: GENERPL AGGREGATE: ) 2,000,000
Jeouer I8 [uwc | ProoUCTS - CotpioR 466 | 2,000,009
OTHER: L]
AUTOMCBILELIABILITY s INASUMT  1g
] ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY {Por porsen) | §
: W m BODLY INARY (Poreccigont) | $
|| wmep auros ‘Amos  (Per eocidund) :
| [uuerELAE | Jocom EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESSLIAS CLAIMSMADE] AUGREGATE $
CED RETENTION $ $
ANV P ARTNERIEXECUTIVE - EL EACHACLIDENT Is
EXCLUDED? NJA - p=
{Mandatery.InNH) €4, DISEASE - EAEBMFLOYER) §
TS S e RATIONS below EL. DISEASE - POLICY LiMIY | §

'DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS S LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES TACCRD 401, Additional Remarks-Sehedule, may be stiached If more epace Iz toquired)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER'

‘CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY.OF THE ABOVE DEéCRlBED' POLICIES BB CANCELLED BEFORE'
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WiLL BE- DELIVERED IN
AGCORDANCE WITH THE PCOLICY FROVIGIONS,

;AU‘I’HORZED REPRESENTATIVE
Peter Wilson

ACORD-26 (2014/01)

© 1888-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. Allrigihts reservad,

The.ACORD name and logo are‘registered marks.of ACORD
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Application/Reservation for City Park/City Property Use

Aprll 2022 . ; NA
Day/Date Needed: R Beginning Time am pm
day of week mm/dd/yy Q
(For mulliple day events, include range of days/dates) Ending Time INAs Q o

Event Description: Prevention of Child Abuse Flags

i Exchange Club of Alpena
Name of Organization: s P

. Raymond Reynold 989-44-2546
Name of Applicant: i e M _Phone #:
s PO Box 1043, Alpena, Ml 49707 , e Ids al,
Applicant Address: — ee oy Email: rBpRYIICE@gmal.com
; ; i 11-29-21
Applicant Signature: / Date:

Please check the facilities requested below:

*

Bay View Park McRae Park
[dTennis Courts ($8.00/court/hr) [IShelter
[ Basketball Courts ($8.00/court/hr) [ Tennis Courts (s8.00/court/hr)
[JBand Shell (5200 retundatle deposit) LlBasketoall Courts (58.00/court/hr)

*Contact the McRae Park Associafion - see footnote
Mich-e-ke-wis Starlite Beach
Cwarming Shelter (includes picnic tables & refuse | [J Pavilion (includes picnic tables, restroom
barrels) building & refuse barrels)
Fee: $175/day (plus $100 security deposit) Fee: 575/day (plus $100 refundable security deposit)
[:I‘Culligc:n Plaza ‘ [ Duck Park
comoved oy iy ot Aipene oA " P9 1490~ | e <45ty (open thaig reo
_EI Alpena Iiegional Traifhegd Clisland Park

| (includes pavilion, restroom building & refuse barrels)

Fee: $50 (plus $50 refundable security deposit) Nofee
[J City Hall Parking Lot ] City Marina
Fee: $50/day Fishing Tournaments: $75

@] Other (please indicate city park/city property or facility):
Mich-e-kew-wis and Starlite parks, Chisholm St. at bridge and banner & Washington Ave. Park

Please return completed form with fee (by check) to:
City of Alpena Clerk's Office, 208 N First Avenue, Alpena MI 49707
events@alpena.mi.us
All questions can be directed to the City Clerk at 989-354-1720M - f from 8 am to 5 pm

*To reserve facilities at McRae Park, please contact the McRae Park Association; Phil Heath 989.340.0695
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1. PURPOSE: The purpose and character of the proposed event is as follows:

The Ethange Club of Alpena requests permission to place sponsored flags & banners promoting the
Preven'tlon of Ch.ild Abuse at various spots throughout the city in April 2022. The Prevention of Child
Abl_Jsa is the National Project of the National Exchange Club. Placement of these flags during the
nationally recognized month of April (National Child Abuse Prevention Month) will help bring awareness
of the importance of families and communities working together to strengthen families to prevent child
abuse and neglecl.

2. ATTENDEES: Applicant estimates that the maximum number of people expected at the event for
each day is;

Flag and Banner Display

3. PARK/PROPERTY POLICY: The applicant hereby agrees to observe and obey the minimum
requirements contained in the Use Policy for City of Alpena Owned or Controlled Properties and Parks
and the laws of the City of Alpena, County of Alpena, and the State of Michigan. The applicant
furthermore agrees to cooperate in all manners with law enforcement officials as the need may arise.

4. COST RECOVERY: The City reserves the right to recover costs from the applicant for any and all work
incurred by the City resultant from the event and failure on the part of the applicant to comply with
this policy. If warranted by City staff, a bond may be required in advance of the event.

5. HOLD HARMLESS CLAUSE: The Person shall defend, pay on behalf of, and hold harmless the City of
Alpena, its employees, agents, public officials, and volunteers from and against any and all losses,
damages, expenses, claims, suits, and demand of whatever nature resulting from damages or injuries,
including death, to any persons or property, and including any claim for losses incurred by reason of
project delay, impact (soft) costs, or other intangible losses that might result from Person late or
defective performance, caused by or arising out of any action, omission, or operation performed in
connection with work attributable to this contract; provided, however, the Person shall not be

required to indemnify the City of Alpena, its employees, agents, public officials, and volunteers for

any damages or injuries, including death, to any person or property caused solely and exclusively by
the negligence of the City of Alpena, its employees, publigfficials, and volunteers.

Date: //-"R 4-07 /

) 2 7 g

Contact DPW at (989) 354-1780 to make arrangements to pick up the key (for Bandshell & Mich-e-ke-wis
rentals). Office hours for DPW are Monday - Friday, 7 a.m. to 3:30 p.m (1001 Long Lake Avenue)

IF YOU DO NOT PICK UP THE KEY PRIOR TO YOUR RENTAL DATE, THERE WILL BE A CHARGE FOR A CITY EMPLOYEE
TO BE CALLED OUTTO GET YOU A KEY. THE AMOUNT CHARGED WILL BE APPROXIMATELY $70.00, AND IT WILL BE
DEDUCTED FROM YOUR DEPOSIT.
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Please use this page to provide a detalled description of the proposed event and event
management plan. Include information which describe the plans for the items discussed in the
following “Event Requirements" section including security personnel, restroom facilities, food
service, medical/personnel facilities, trash disposal, access and traffic control, parking,
illumination, noise, and any other issues being planned for.

Project details:

1) Banner across US23 North-3 weeks

2) Our flags presented at US23 South in front of Michekewis Park and Starlite Beach. Flags will be
palaced 5 feet from the sidewalk lakeside -1 week

3) An Exchange Club of Alpena Banner (with the Prevention of Child Abuse information) with 1
Prevention of Child Abuse Flag on each side to be located along the river of M32 (Washington Ave.
Park) and US23 South (Starlite) for the month of April. These banners and side flags would have
nothing to do with the existing activities performed by Alpena Kiwanis and Alpena Boosters. | believe
we could keep these presentations within 10-16 feet.

Picture diagrams are incluced with application.
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Event Requirements

Applicant shall determine if any of the following are necessary considering the scope of the event and
shall provide details of the provisions being made for each. Attach a detailed explanation (on page 3), and
attach diagrams and drawings where applicable, of the applicant’s plan to provide for the following. City
staff shall then review and make recommendations or requirements. Please include emergency contact
information with drawings. If any of the following items are anticipated as being needed at the event,
then submission of this form shall be made to the City Clerk’s office 45 days prior to the event.

I:I 1. Security Personnel - Are security personnel needed for the event? O @

Yes No
If yes, the sponsor shall employ, at its own expense, such security personnel as are necessary and

sufficient to provide for the adequate security and protection of the maximum number of persons at
the event and for the preservation of order and protection of property in and around the site of the
event. No permit shall be issued unless the City of Alpena Police Department is satisfied that such
necessary and sufficient security personnel will be provided by the sponsor for the duration of the
event.

FORCITY STAFF USE ONLY: Staff shall indicate the name of the department making each recommendation

SECURITY |

I:I?. Restroom Facilities — Are existing restrooms sufficient to meet the needs of the event? O @
Yes No
If no, then (on page 3) provide a description of the restroom facilities being planned for based on the
number of persons to attend. City staff will review and determine if adequate. The sponsor shall
provide for liquid waste disposal in accordance with all rules and regulations pertaining thereto by the
Alpena County Health Department. An executed agreement shall be provided to the City between the
sponsor and a licensed pumper or hauler, which agreement will assure proper, effective, and frequent
removal of liquid waste from the premises so as to neither create a nuisance nor menace to the public
health. Recommended facilities are as follows:
FACILITIES MALE FEMALE UNISEX
TOILETS 1:200 1:75 1:75
URINALS 1:150 N/A

’ FOR CITY STAFF USE ONLY: Staff SBE}H indicate the name of the department making each recommendation

RESTROOMS

Ei ot
S
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(s

FOOD SERVICE

[

MEDICAL

Food Service — Will food service be available at the event? O @

Yes No
If catering is made available on the premises, it shall be delivered only through caterers or vendors
licensed and in accordance with provisions of the local health department being District Health
Department #4, (989) 356-4507. (Potluck dinners do not count as “catering”)

a. Has there been a food service permit issued? O @
Y

b. Will adequate water supply be available?

Yes No
c.  Will there be a food truck or mobile food vendor at the event? O @
Yes No

Medical Personnel/Facilities — Does the event require medical personnel/facilities? O @
Yes No
If yes, the sponsor shall provide for medical personnel and facilities. The kind, location, staff strength,
medical and other supplies and equipment of such facilities shall be approved by the Fire Chief for the
City of Alpena. An ambulance may be required for events including, but not limited to, running races
and triathlons. Such ambulance will be located with unencumbered access to the persons in

attendance at the event and a clear route of egress from the event conducive to rapid travel shall be
maintained at all times.
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[]s.

Trash Disposal - Does the event require additional trash disposal? O @

Yes No
If yes, the sponsor shall provide for solid waste storage on, and disposal from, the premises. Storage
shall be in covered, fly tight and rodent-proof containers, provided in sufficient quantity to
accommodate the number of persons attending the event.

[ e

ACCESS/TRAFFIC

Access & Traffic Control — Is access/traffic control required? O @

Yes No
If yes, the sponsor shall provide for ingress and egress from the premises so as to ensure an orderly
flow of traffic onto and off from the premises. Traffic lanes and other space shall be provided and kept
open for access by ambulance, fire equipment, and other emergency services as required by the City
of Alpena Fire Chief and Police Chief. The sponsor may be required to erect a barrier completely
enclosing the site. Such barrier shall have sufficient height and strength as will preclude persons in
excess of the maximum permissible persons from gaining access and such barrier shall have sufficient
gates, properly located, so as to provide ready and safe ingress and egress. The sponsor shall insure
that public sidewalks, streets, alleys, and rights-of-way are not blocked or obstructed by the
participants at the event, their vehicles, or their activities. The City reserves the right to establish a
capacity for the area requested to be utilized by an event.
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m

PARKING

|:|8.

ILLUMINATION

s

NOISE

Parking - Is adequate parking available? @ O

Yes No
At each city park/city property, either on-street or off-street parking is provided. Parking shall only be
allowed in designated and maintained parking areas. The sponsor shall provide for and ensure orderly
parking and shall maintain such parking and traffic patterns within the parking area as to assure that
each vehicle shall have a clear route by which to leave the parking area at all times.

Illumination - Is additional illumination needed? O @

Yes No
If yes, the sponsor shall provide additional electrical illumination of all occupied areas to ensure the
safety and comfort of all event attendees if required by the Police Chief.

Noise - Is an exception to the City of Alpena noise ordinance needed? O @
Yes No

See the Alpena Code of Ordinances Chapter 54, Article 1, Section 54-1, subsection e for exceptions.
- _ . A————
IL ii

'FOR CITY STAFF USE ON Il indicate the name of the nt makin  recor
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I:l 10. Other - Are there other needs anticipated? O O

Yes No
If so, please describe those needs and proposed provisions here:
(examples include but are not limited to liquor licenses, signs/banners, animal areas, lines painted on the
grass to mark event areas, portable generators/cables, etc.)

Prior to issuance of a permit, the City of Alpena may impose any other condition(s) reasonably
calculated to protect the health, safety, welfare, and property of persons attending the event, persons

I:I 11. Insurance - Has proof of insurance been submitted? O O

Yes No
Depending on the nature of the event and liability associated with the event, the sponsor, individual,
applicant, or entity holding an event on city property may be required to have liability insurance in the
amount of, at minimum, one million dollars ($1,000,000) and shall name the City of Alpena as an
additional insured.

INSURANCE
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Event Rules and Regulations

1

10.

11.

Reservations for use of city parks/city properties and facilities may be taken for the current calendar
year or the following calendar year.

Reservations may be made by mail or in person at the City Clerk’s Office, City Hall, 208 N. First Avenue,
Alpena, MI 49707, (989) 354-1720 or may be sent to events@alpena.mi.us.

Reservations are not confirmed nor considered complete until payment and deposit is received with
reservation application or confirming letter is sent.

All applications will be considered on a first received basis, per the appropriate tier per the Use Policy
for City of Alpena Owned or Controlled Properties and Parks.

Persons must be 18 years or older to reserve a facility. Applicants under the age of 18 may apply for
events and may be approved on a case by case basis.

Patrons are responsible for keeping the city park/city property clean by leaving the surrounding
grounds free of litter after the event. Additional bags may be located in the bottom of the trash
receptacle. If the patron does not clean up the litter produced by the event, further fees may be
assessed and/or future access to city park/city property and facilities through reservations may be
prohibited. Any deposit collected is to be returned if patrons have cleaned their area and taken
additional refuse with them and no damages are evident.

If picnic tables are relocated for the event, they must be returned to their original location.

All advertising shall be limited to identification and/or location of the event. All sales of merchandise
or other material is prohibited unless allowed by permit. Please see the signage section of the Use
Policy for City of Alpena Owned or Controlled Properties and Parks.

Use of the city park/city property or facilities for profit by any individual, entity, or organization shall
be prohibited or allowed by permit only. For information on permits for food trucks and similar
establishments, please contact the City Manager.

The permit holder further agrees to pay the City of Alpena for damages to the property caused by any
person during the permitted event.

The City of Alpena Parks are open from 8 AM to 11 PM, unless otherwise posted at the main vehicle
entrance to the park. Variance to this shall be authorized as outlined in the permit.

General Park Rules (Please see Ch. Section 58-62 for the full list of prohibited acts)

1,
2.

Glass is prohibited in City Parks.

Owners must ensure that their pets are controlled per City of Alpena ordinances and the owners shall
be responsible for cleaning up any droppings.

All motorized vehicles must remain in designated parking areas unless expressly approved in the
permit.

Smoking of tobacco in any form (including vaping) Is prohibited in City parks except in designated
areas at the Municipal Marina and the Woodward Avenue Trailhead.

Dangerous animals are prohibited in City Parks. All dogs must be on a leash. See Section 10-13

City parks shall not be used to dump, deposit or leave any bottles, broken glass, ashes, paper, boxes,
cans, dirt, rubbish, waste, garbage or refuse or other trash.

By submitting a signed application for a City Park/City Property Use Permit, the applicant agrees to adhere to the rules
stated above.
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Clerk/Treasurer —

December 28, 2021

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council,
and Citizens of the City of Alpena, Michigan:

It is our pleasure to submit the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Alpena,
Michigan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. This report was prepared in conformance with regulations
and standards set forth by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and its Committee on Governmental Accounting and Auditing, generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP), the Treasurer of the State of Michigan, and the Government
Finance Officers Association (GFOA).

State law requires that every general-purpose local government publish, within six months of the close of
each fiscal year, a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a
firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the
comprehensive annual financial report of the City of Alpena, Michigan for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2021.

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained
in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controls that it has established for this
purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to
provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any material
misstatements.

Straley Lamp & Kraenzlein P.C., Certified Public Accountants, have issued an unmodified (“clean”)
opinion on the City of Alpena, Michigan’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021. The
independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of the CAFR.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report and

provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A
complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF THE CITY OF ALPENA

The City of Alpena is the county seat of Alpena County. Alpena is located on the west shore of Lake Huron
and is one of the oldest chartered communities in the Lower Peninsula. Alpena is a community highly
dependent on its industrial base, as it has been since it was laid out in 1840. In the early historical days,
Alpena was a thriving lumbering/logging community, reaching a peak population of 15,600 in 1897.



By the end of the 1880s, Alpena was nearing the end of its lumbering heyday. By the early part of the
twentieth century cement manufacturing had eclipsed lumbering as the City’s chief industry. The cement
industry continues to remain an integral, valuable, and important part of the City. Government agencies
such as the City and County seats; organizations such as the hospital, museum, high school and community
college; and businesses such as LafargeHolcim, Besser Company and Decorative Panels International all
make the City of Alpena their headquarters.

For 2020, the U.S. Census Bureau reports a population of 10,197 for the City of Alpena. That is 286 people
less than the 2010 census. The City is the largest political entity within the County and comprised of over
one-third of the total County population. The City is completely surrounded by the Charter Township of
Alpena which comprises another one-third of the County population.

Most recent data show the median age is 42.4 years old and the average income per capita is $23,446. The
average income per capita has increased steadily since 2016.

At the end of October 2021, the unemployment level for Alpena County was 4.7%, which is a decrease
from the previous year of 6.4%.

School enrollment has been decreasing since 2016. In 2021, enrollment decreased to 1,138.

There are 2,873 workers employed by the principal employers in the City with the largest percentage
employed by MidMichigan Medical Center, followed by Northeast Michigan Community Mental Health,
Alpena Public Schools and LafargeHolcim.

The taxable value of real property in the City for tax year 2020 was $222,448,288 and personal property
was $27,863,800 for a total taxable value of $250,312,088. The real property values increased from the tax
year 2019 value of $219,681,787, and the personal property increased from the taxable value of
$23,533,800. The total taxable value for tax year 2020 resulted in an increase of $7,096,501 over 2019.

Municipal services provided to its taxpayers include: legislative, executive, elections, assessing, finance,
public safety, law enforcement, fire protection, ambulance, building inspection, parks and recreation, an
electrical division, cemetery, cultural, conservation of natural resources, planning, engineering, and other
functions. In addition, the City maintains two enterprise funds, which provide water and sewer. Other funds
include an equipment fund for transportation rental services, and a stores fund. The City also has a marina
fund, a tree/park improvement fund, and a building authority fund.

The City of Alpena operates under the council-manager form of government. The City’s charter was
adopted September 1, 1915, and then revised March 13, 1944. The Council consists of five members,
including the Mayor, who are elected by the residents of the City qualified to vote under the Constitution
and Laws of the State of Michigan. The members of the Council serve for a term of four years. The Mayor
of the City is elected at large by the voters of the City and also serves a four-year term.

The City Charter provides for a chief administrative office headed by a City Manager. The City Council
appoints the City Manager based on his/her education, work experience, training, and ability without regard
to political preference. The Manager serves at the pleasure of the City Council. The Manager appoints the
City Planning and Development Director, City Engineer, Police Chief, Fire Chief, and others as may be
determined by the City Council, all subject to confirmation by the Council. The offices of City
Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director, City Attorney, and City Assessor are appointed directly by the City
Council.



ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Since its early years, the economic base for the City rested on its proximity to abundant natural resources.
Strategically sited at the mouth of the Thunder Bay River and along the shores of Lake Huron, it was the
optimum location to process raw materials into a marketable product and then ship the product off to distant
markets. Resource based industries, starting in the late 1800’s, were the driving force of economic growth.
Starting around 1980, large employment-based heavy industry underwent a manpower reduction as modern
automated systems displaced the workforce.

The 1990’s saw the community focus on new efforts to diversify the local economy. Today, Alpena serves as
the commercial and healthcare hub for a four-county area. National retailers and service providers have
opened and created employment. Healthcare services have produced the largest growth. In 2016, the
Alpena Regional Medical Center joined MidMichigan Health and changed its name to MidMichigan Medical
Center — Alpena. The facility has grown from a local primary care county-based hospital into a regional
secondary healthcare center. The Medical Center has an annual operating revenue of over $125 million,
providing well-paid and stable jobs. Total annual operating expenses (including salaries, wages, benefits,
medical supplies, and other fees) total over $119 million. In 2017, the Medical Center was recognized as a
Top Rural Community Hospital and received Michigan’s Quality Improvement Organization Governor’s
Award for Excellence.

Education, small-specialized industries, and tourism are other sources of new jobs and economic
development. Alpena Community College’s spring 2021 enrollment was 2,568. Fairly steady enrollment
has allowed the college to create more jobs and train many people to take advantage of new technology,
healthcare, marketing, and new industrial applications. Likewise, organizations like the Alpena Area
Convention and Visitors Bureau, the Alpena Downtown Development Authority, and the Alpena Area
Chamber of Commerce have created and promoted many successful events that include the Michigan Brown
Trout Festival, Great Lakes Lighthouse Festival, Maritime Festival, and other similar events that attract
tourism dollars to the community’s motels, eateries, and specialty shops. Efforts are being made to attract
new technology and specialized industries to new industrial and commercial parks in the City and at the
Alpena County Regional Airport.

Local Property Taxes and State Revenue Sharing Funds are the primary source of local government revenue.
The City of Alpena will collect 16.1066 mils for operations in fiscal year 2022, which is the same as fiscal year
2021. This tax revenue funds a budget of $10.7 million for fiscal year 2021-2022, with a fund balance of
$3.3 million. The City also will levy 1.0000 mil for Dial-A-Ride operations and an additional 1.9812 mills in
the Downtown Development District area. The County currently levies 4.7936 mills, which have been
rolled back from 5.4000 mills allowed under State Law by the Headlee Amendment. This has limited
County government by restricting expansion of non-mandated services, unless provided by voter approval
(EMS millage, 911 surcharge, Senior Citizen millages, etc.). The County also levies 0.9985 mills for library
services, 0.9986 mills for jail operations, 1.4979 mills for ambulance services, 0.5491 mills for senior
services, 0.2097 mills for veterans’ services and 0.4993 mills for recreation.

Alpena is actively preparing to accommodate a large and growing elderly population. The area’s natural
resources, friendly small-town atmosphere, cultural and continuing education opportunities, and quality
medical care facilities all provide an exceptional quality of life. Several facilities geared toward senior
housing have been completed in the last several years and prospects for further such development are
promising. Besser Senior Living Community was completed in early 2020 and includes 48 assisted living
units.

The City has been an active participant in attempts to redevelop the former Fletcher Paper Mill site. The
former mill office building was rehabbed, and additional parking was added for new offices for Community
Mental Health in 2012. The NOAA Maritime Heritage Center completed a major expansion project in
2013. A portion of the mill has been utilized as an office for US Fish and Wildlife.



All the lots have been sold in the City’s North Industrial Park. To provide additional sites for light industrial
growth, the City, in conjunction and partnership with Target Alpena, developed another business enterprise
park for light manufacturing and commercial ventures.

The City continues in its effort to sell and develop the 100-acre US 23 North property across from North
Industrial Park. The City instituted a price reduction plan whereby a purchaser could significantly reduce
the acquisition cost for a parcel based on capital investment and job creation. The City constructed an access
road and utilities from US 23 North across wetlands located on the front of the property to the dry
developable land in the rear and stands ready for development.

The City has utilized MSHDA'’s Neighborhood Rental Rehabilitation and Downtown Rental Development
Programs in the past. The Downtown Rental Development program has resulted in the construction of
many new residential rental units, primarily in underutilized second floors of downtown commercial
buildings. This program was reinitiated recently by the MEDC after several years of transition between
MSHDA to the MEDC. Several property owners are looking at the possibility of adding additional
downtown units above commercial uses.

The City was certified as a Redevelopment Ready Community in 2018 through the MEDC. The certification
shows the City of Alpena meets all the best practices as set by the State in their redevelopment efforts. The
City of Alpena was the 23" community in the state to receive this certification.

Target Alpena Development Corporation, the local economic development organization, continues to
implement its short-term and long-term strategic economic development plan for Alpena County, including
the City of Alpena. These efforts have been strengthened by its merger with the Alpena Area Chamber of
Commerce. This brings to the table the resources and unique capabilities of each organization thereby
significantly increasing the economic development potential of the combined entities. A fourteenth service
agreement between the City and Target Alpena has been executed and went into effect July 1, 2021. This
Agreement, which provides Target Alpena with $40,000 in funding from the City of Alpena, includes a
scope of services to be performed by Target Alpena, reporting requirements for the organization, and an
outline of the rights and responsibilities of both parties. Under the leadership of the Chamber and Target
Alpena’s Executive Director and Executive Committee, great strides have been made in revitalizing and
refocusing the area’s economic development efforts.

In 2014, the City was able to utilize a brownfield redevelopment plan to assist in the development of the
vacant riverfront property at Third Avenue and River Street (225 River Street) in downtown. A four story,
ninety room Holiday Inn Express hotel, was completed in 2017 at a cost of $8.25 million. The 15-year
Brownfield Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Plan approved by the City Council, the City’s Brownfield
Redevelopment Authority (BRA), and the Michigan Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) Board. The
MEGA will reimburse the developers for the cost of special pier foundations required for the site, as well
as street improvements necessary to convert Third Avenue to a two-way street between Chisholm Street
and River Street. The City approved a 10-year Commercial Rehabilitation Exemption Certificate that
provides a 100% abatement of all local property taxes on the improvements constructed on the property. In
2015, the City was able to utilize funding from the brownfield remediation fund to conduct environmental
testing for a vacant industrial building at 821 W. Miller Street to allow for the development of a new
brewery, called the Austin Brothers Beer Company. The City utilized the remediation fund for two smaller
sites, including 120 Washington Avenue and 1222 Ford Avenue to allow those sites to be sold for future
development. In 2019, the Alpena Authority for Brownfield Redevelopment received a $300,000
brownfield grant from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency to allow for the environmental
assessment of properties within the City of Alpena and that process is underway for several properties.

There have been significant investments within the City in both the public and private sectors. These
investments range from significant hospital improvements completed and a new patient wing currently
under construction, to private investment in the area (Holiday Inn, Mangos, WMCR HQ and Austin
Brothers) to grant assisted projects (Mangos, Alpena Furniture, Red Brick Tap and Barrel and soon 310 N
Second Ave) to public projects like the Dog Park and Splash Pad. With nearly $30 million in investments
and $78 million in future investment, all signs indicate that this trend will continue.



Placemaking, or creating public areas that attract visitors is another goal. To that end, individual and
corporate volunteers from the area have partnered to upgrade park infrastructure by replacing the
deteriorating bridge that connected Duck Park to Island Park to a new covered style bridge. The bridge
reflects the dedication of Alpena area residents. Other improvements have been made such as the addition
of landscaped wildflower gardens and fishing areas. The Wildlife Sanctuary Board is also hoping to expand
educational opportunities at the site and recently finished a feasibility study and building design for an
interpretive center proposed to be constructed at Duck Park. Additional placemaking projects include the
large public mural in the DDA pocket park downtown and a dog park that was constructed in North
Riverfront Park. Both projects received financial support from a combination of crowd funding and MEDC
grants. The Thunder Bay Arts Council also utilized the crowd funding program with an MEDC match to
fund sculptures located at ACC, the Duck Park and the Dog Park and are continuing their sculpture
development program throughout the City.

The City also received a $10,000 grant from NEMCOG through the State Regional Prosperity Initiative.
The grant was utilized to install over 20 wayfinding signs in various parts of the City’s 19-mile Bi-Path,
which direct people utilizing the trails to various business corridors and attractions.

Northland Area Federal Credit Union’s new corporate headquarters began construction in 2018 in the City
of Alpena. The building is a four (4) story, 58,000 square foot structure, located at 1161 N. Bagley Street
and was completed in 2020.



VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS

The City of Alpena conducted an in-depth visioning session that involved extensive input from citizens and
the city staff in 2009. The Alpena City Council used that information as well as insights from analyzing
current and future trends, assumptions, opportunities, and potential threats that would influence the vitality
of the community to envision a collective desired future. With examination of all the data, the Council
established long-term directions and short-term goals in major impact areas.

Committed to continuous improvement, the Alpena City Council and City staff conducted a planning
session in April 2009 to revisit the vision and review the status of the goals to purposefully revise and
update them (reviewed annually since 1988, biannually since 1998 until 2004. The last planning session
was held in 2009). Specific intent was focused on the major impact areas, which reflect key aspects of the
community’s daily life. Each impact area is cooperatively maintained or enhanced to achieve the quality of
life desired for citizens, their children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren.



City of Alpena

Executive Summary

The City Council of Alpena met on April 18 and 25, 2009 to develop a vision for the City, identify the
values that are important guiding principles for the City, and to develop a strategic plan identifying key
priorities for the City for the next three to five years. Several community members also participated in the
April 18 meeting.

The group identified 21 key strategies for achieving the vision. After a rigorous prioritization process, five
strategies were selected as critical areas for focus in the next three to five years.

Build strong understanding of and consensus for what is happening in Alpena.

Ensure that policies support the vision and move Alpena forward (ordinances, charter, etc.).
Establish a coordinated economic development plan and strategy.

Promote and protect natural resources.

Identify a clear target market (who we are — tourism, manufacturing, seniors, other).

Participants also identified six strategies that are important to continue to perform well. As foundational
strategies, these are critical to maintain.

Strong essential services.

Strong infrastructure.

Adequate resources.

Identify all possible areas of funding.
Public and private partnerships.
Educated staff, board and council.

Values
Understanding an organization’s values is important — because these represent the “non-negotiable”

behaviors that will govern its activities and employees. Council members, staff, and community members
identified seven important values for the City, defining them as shown below.

We are transparent—always.
As Individuals ....

e We say what we mean and do what we say.
o We avoid hidden or personal agendas.
e We act in a selfless manner.

As a City ....

e \We encourage openness, through meetings, communication channels and discussions.
e We share the information we can, and trust others when they cannot share information.
e We say what we mean and do what we say.



We accept responsibility for our actions.

As individuals ...

o We provide explanations, not excuses.
e We know who to direct others to.
o \We are available and respectful of others.

As a City ...

e We are open and transparent.
o We have clearly defined responsibilities for council and staff.
e We have a comprehensive plan and we live by our plan.

We do the right things, in the right way, at the right time.

As individuals...

e We model accountability.
e We demonstrate our commitment.
e We are proud of our accomplishments.

As a City...

e We practice environmental stewardship.
e We are service oriented, with a strong referral and support network.
e We build inclusive and collaborative relationships.

We have confidence that everyone involved will do the right thing.

As individuals...

o We are willing to be open and vulnerable.
e We accept each other’s actions without doubt.
e We are consistent in our actions.

As a City ...

e We encourage an open door policy, with full disclosure whenever appropriate.

e We are transparent and share information freely with our community.

¢ We provide opportunities for public feedback through surveys, our newsletter, and our website.

-10 -



We protect our community and employees from harm.

As individuals ...

e We provide funding for safety initiatives.
e We are knowledgeable about safety practices.
o We enforce safety laws, ordinances and regulations.

As a City ...

o We educate the public about safety practices.
e We update our ordinances to encourage safe practices.

o We issue warnings and/or tickets when necessary to encourage safe practices.

We are willing to take responsibility for making things happen.

As individuals ...

e We demonstrate strength of character.
¢ We have strong convictions.
e We are willing to be involved.

As a City ...

e We cooperate with other governmental units.
e We demonstrate fiscal responsibility.
e We listen to the public and understand its needs.

We have the ability (through training and experience) to do things well.

As individuals ...

e We participate in ongoing, continuous education.
¢ We demonstrate a positive attitude toward learning.
e We are dedicated to performing tasks well.

As a City ...

e We budget for continuing education.
e We attend classes and seminars.
e We identify and hold each other to clear standards of performance.

-11 -



Vision

Understanding where an organization is going is a critical part of successful change. Council members,
staff, and community members participated in a visioning exercise, which resulted in eight major themes
that are important for the City in the future.

Vibrant Downtown

Small Town Feel

Business & Commerce

Consolidation of Government Services
Higher Education

Economic Diversity

Waterfront Development

Technology Infrastructure
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Creating the Future

Looking back from great success, what were the obstacles that had to be overcome to achieve the vision for
the City of Alpena? Council members and staff identified the following key obstacles.

Lack of money/budget

Lack of cooperation (internal & external)
Community apathy

Public opinion

Policies (lack of, limiting, too much)

Turf battles (government and agencies)
Lack of resources (time, staff, money)

Fear (failure, unknown, ridicule, re-election)
Small group minority/vocal majority
Politics

Close-minded narrow thinking

Image (self & external)

Pre-conceived ideas

Having to do more with less

"No"

Boundary constraints / lack of room

Limited staff, time, burnout

Lack of citizens taking ownership
Disconnect between staff and elected officials
"Alpena mentality" - not good enough

A discussion of the obstacles allowed for clearing the air and served as a springboard for looking forward.
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What are the things we have going for us now that can help us create the City that we want? Council

members and staff focused on the question, “It’s five years from now. You have had great success.”

The group identified the following enablers.

What “enablers” were available that helped the City to achieve its great success?
What resources did you take advantage of?

Professional staff & council
Partnerships

0 Public

0 Private
Built trust and core values
Survival ability/adaptability
Innovative and creative thinking
Knowledge and innate ability
Redeveloped downtown
Natural resources
Positive political endorsements
"Get it done" mentality
Cultural/recreational infrastructure
Leadership
Safety
Manufacturing base
Trust
Volunteers/community spirit
Technology
Better service

Cooperation amongst "powers that be"

Grants
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Strategic Profile

Having considered the obstacles to success and possible resources that could be employed to achieve the
vision for the City, participants then considered possible strategies that could be implemented to achieve

SUCCess.

After considering many possible strategies, participants identified 21 strategies for success.

A

B.

O

~-IEMmMO

CAYDOTOZZr A

Educated staff, boards, council, etc. (training, workshops, abilities, skills)

Built strong consensus and understanding for ideas (joint workshops, staff, council, community) -
good communication with staff about what's happening

Multiple opportunities for community involvement (solicited public input, listened with an open
mind)

Policies that support the vision and move us forward (ordinance, charters, etc.)

Clear target market (who we are - tourism, manufacturing, other, seniors)

Strong essential services (police, fire, etc.)

Strong infrastructure

Great housing options (green/redeveloped/new)

Great communication with state and federal legislators and agencies

Partnerships - public and private (townships, county, MDOT, schools, service organizations,
grants, etc.)

Clear organizational priorities and goals

Coordinated economic development plan and strategy

Adequate resources - work together, committed to right things

Marketed Alpena's assets

Promoted and protected natural resources

Found all available sources of funding (grants, private, public internal, external)
Consolidated government services

Encouraged employees input and participation

Communicate information to public effectively (use technology, etc.)

Empower citizens to find their own solutions and work together

Capitalize on Alpena's small town feel

The 21 strategies were ranked and plotted using Consensys™ technology. They were viewed from two
perspectives.

Importance — Looking back from great success, having implemented all of these strategies, which
were the most important in achieving the City’s vision?

Current Performance — How well are you currently performing this strategy, as compared to where
it needs to be?
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Importance

The following chart is an opportunity profile displaying the results of the evaluation. Letters on the chart
correspond with the letters shown in the list of strategies

Strategic Opportunity Profile

100

Average

Current Performance

The items with the green rectangle around them are the most important strategies to be addressed first.
High-Leverage Opportunities
Five strategies emerged as high-leverage opportunities (high importance, low performance). They are:

e Built strong consensus and understanding for ideas (B)

e Policies that support the vision and move us forward (D)

e Coordinated economic development plan and strategy (L)

o Clear target market (E)

e Promote and protect natural resources (O)* (note: this was moved to high-leverage because there
is a clear discrepancy between the council’s and staff’s perception as to current performance).
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Foundational Strategies

Nine additional strategies (in blue) were identified as foundational strategies that must be continued. These
are strategies that are important to continue, as they are foundational to the success of the City.

e Strong essential services (F)

e Strong infrastructure (G)

o Found all available sources of funding (P)

o Adequate resources (M)

e Public and private partnerships (J)

e Educated staff, board, and council (A)

o Clear organizational goals and objectives (K)* (moved to foundational based on discussion and
consensus that action planning on the high-leverage opportunities would address performance
issues on this strategy).

o Communicate information to public effectively (S)

e Multiple opportunities for community involvement (C)

Mid-Term Opportunities (24-36 months)

Seven additional strategies (in red) were identified as mid-term opportunities that should be explored. While
these will take slightly longer to implement, research should be started soon. As performance improves on
the high-leverage opportunities, these strategies are likely to increase in importance.

o Marketed Alpena’s assets (N)

e Encouraged employees’ input and participation (R)

e Capitalize on Alpena’s small town feel (U)

e Consolidated government services (Q)

e Great communication with state and federal legislators and agencies (1)
e Great housing options (H)

e Empower citizens to find their own solutions and work together (T)
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Five Bold Steps

When all of the activities from the strategic planning meetings are combined, the result was the following
drawing that represents the vision and plan for the City.
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Action Plans

Action plans were created for the five high-leverage strategies. These plans will need to be updated on a
regular basis as progress takes place.

Staff €<->City Council

Face to face meetings between council and staff
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Semi-annually or quarterly

Specific meeting times with council / work session type environment. Set up specific
times when staff is available for council interaction

\eeelcaieae Comfort level between staff and the community (based on direction going)

WHO: Manager <-> Staff

What: Manager and key staff member meetings

When: Bi-weekly with all key department heads; as needed for specific issues

How: Set regular meeting times (block on calendars)

\eeelcaieae Comfort level between staff and the community (based on direction going)

Public €<-> Staff/City Council

Further promote existing communication channels

Ongoing

Letters, emails, public comment meetings, public information meetings, on-site
meetings, presentations, Internet

Ve Comfort level between staff and the community (based on direction going)

WHO: City €-> Other Governmental Agencies

What: Meet with appropriate government officials as needed for specific actions

When: Dictated by need based upon specific issues

How: As appropriate and as needed

Vel Comfort level between staff and the community (based on direction going)
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Policies that Move Us Forward

City Attorney, Appropriate Staff, Council, Community

What: Update city policies and charter to align with our vision; Review policies,
ordinances, and charter to identify sections that are inconsistent or interfere;
Develop new language

Review within 180 days

Rewrite within 180 days after review is completed
Coordinate charter revisions with scheduled elections
\ociao e When adopted or approved by Council

When passed by the electorate

Coordinated Economic Development Plan/Strategy

WHO: Area wide economic development process. Council, staff, citizens
DDA, Target, CVB, business community
Determine what we are targeting and build consensus about what we’re looking for

Modify zoning ordinances, etc. to help promote economic development

Identify which tax incentives we want to approve based upon our economic
development goals

Need to begin immediately — establish within 6-9 months
Zoning completed
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Promote Natural Resources

City council, DDA, CVB, individual citizens, very involved peer groups

Measurements:

Promote educational programs in both government and individuals
Better communicate with agencies

Market Alpena’s water facilities/culture (lakes, rivers, amenities)
Strive for cleaner beaches and lakes

As soon as possible = long term

Education — institute fairly quickly

Some things take more funding or planning

Work on long-term as finances allow

Scientific sampling and studies

Waste stream collection records

Recycling collection records

Public surveys

Sniff tests

Level of cleaner streets (protect catch basins)

Reduction of salt

Seeing fewer non-redeemable containers along streets and roadways
Tourism surveys

More people on beaches
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Protect Natural Resources
MDEQ, EPA, Large/small industry, private citizens, council, other

environmental protection agencies

Measurements:

Better communication with agencies

Government and public education

Offer solutions for pollution

Incentives for environmental responsibility

Better understanding of economic/ environmental costs and impact
Seek ways to make environmental responsibility cost effective

As soon as possible = long term

Education — institute fairly quickly

Some things take more funding or planning

Work on long-term as finances allow

Scientific sampling and studies

Waste stream collection records

Recycling collection records

Public surveys

Sniff tests

Level of cleaner streets (protect catch basins)

Reduction of salt

Seeing fewer non-redeemable containers along streets and roadways
Tourism surveys

More people on beaches
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Clear Target Market
WHO:

What/When: Co-champions

e Staff, elected
o 30 days

Create / invite / organize the “Kings & Queens” meeting in a workshop type
session. Outside facilitator.

e Review recent plans
e Brainstorm what we want Alpena to be — 120 days

Identify opportunities for target market — create public input forum

Agreed upon target markets

Consensus

While it is important to look at the overall voting results, it is equally important to consider the level of
agreement for each strategy. In most cases, there is significant agreement among the groups (same guadrant
= general agreement). Where there are significant differences, additional dialogue should be considered.

Conclusion and Recommendations

There is much work to be done to turn these action plans into reality. The City is encouraged to add these
items to quarterly Council agendas for the purpose of following up and keeping the focus on the important
priorities that has been established.
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RELEVANT FINANCIAL POLICIES

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure
designed to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure
that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable
assurance recognized that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and
(2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

Budgeting Controls. In addition, the City maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary
controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved
by the City Council. Activities of the general fund, special revenue funds and debt service funds are
included in the annual appropriated budget. Project-length financial plans are adopted for the capital
projects funds. The level of budgetary control (that is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed
the appropriated amount) is established by department within the individual funds. Detail at the activity
level is presented in the Required Supplementary Information — Budgetary Comparison Schedule — General
Fund for the benefit of management.

As demonstrated by the statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the City
continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

OTHER INFORMATION

Awards. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Alpena for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for
preparation of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program
standards. The report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Alpena has received a
Certificate of Achievement for the last 27 consecutive years (fiscal years ended June 30, 1994 through
2020). We believe our current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program
requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA.

Acknowledgments. Special recognition must be extended to Leilan Bruning, Deputy
Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director, who assisted with the development of the Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) and annual independent audit. We wish to express our appreciation to all
members of the City’s departments. We would also like to thank the members of the Alpena City Council
for their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible
and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

Rachel Smolinski Anna M. Soik
City Manager City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director
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ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

City Council Appointees

City Manager
City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director

City Assessor

City Attorney

City Manager Appointees

City Planning & Development Director
City Engineer

Assistant City Engineer

Police Chief

Fire Chief

Deputy Fire Chief

Deputy Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director
Human Resources Administrator

City Building Official

Division Head

Department of Public Works / Cemetery

Rachel Smolinski
Anna Soik

Berg Assessing and
Consulting, Inc.

William Pfeifer

Vacant

Stephen Shultz
Charles Kendziorski
Joel Jett

William Forbush
Robert Edmonds
Leilan Bruning
Kathy Himes

Anthony Dawson

Sean McNamara
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Il. FINANCIAL SECTION

The Financial Section Contains:

A. Independent Auditor's Report

B. Management’s Discussion and Analysis
C. Basic Financial Statements

D. Required Supplementary Information

E. Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and
Schedules (Supplementary Information)
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Philip T. Straley, CPA/PFS
Bernard R. Lamp, CPA

James E. Kraenzlein, CPA/ABV/CFF
Gary C. VanMassenhove, CPA
Jeff A. Taphouse, CPA

John D. Faulman, CPA
Andrew R. Lamp, CPA
Chelsea A. McConnell, CPA
Leah M. Cox, CPA

Nicholas L. Cordes, CPA
Mark L. Sandula, CPA

Robert D. llsley

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Alpena, Michigan

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the City of Alpena, Michigan (the “City”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Alpena, Michigan
as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters

Implementation of GASB Statement No. 84

As described in Note 20, the City implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, in
the current year. Accordingly, beginning net position of governmental activities has been restated. Our opinion is
not modified with respect to this matter.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and required supplemental information, as identified in the table of contents, be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Alpena, Michigan’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, statistical section and other
supplementary information, as identified in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The other supplemental information, as identified in the table of contents, are the responsibility of management and
were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the other supplemental information, as identified in the
table of contents, are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 28, 2021, on
our consideration of the City of Alpena, Michigan’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

December 28, 2021
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As management of the City of Alpena, Michigan (the “City”) we offer readers of the City’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.
We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that
we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found on pages 3-24 of this report.

Financial Highlights

e The total assets of the City of Alpena are $75,632,792, composed of $58,601,634 in capital assets and
$17,031,158 in other assets. The total deferred outflows of resources are $1,015,733. Total liabilities are
$11,031,680, composed of $9,856,350 in long-term liabilities and $1,175,330 in current liabilities. Total
deferred inflows of resources for the City are $6,414,088.

e The total net position for the City is $59,202,757 (net position). Of this amount, $2,437,631 is unrestricted,
of which $(4,599,584) relates to governmental activities and $7,037,215 relates to business-type activities.

e The City of Alpena’s primary government total net position increased by $2,665,744. This was the result
of positive net changes in position of $665,334 in the governmental activities and positive net changes in
position of $2,000,410 in business-type activities.

e The City of Alpena provided services of $12,503,134 in governmental activities and $4,822,071 of
business-type activities for expenses totaling $17,325,205 during the year ended June 30, 2021.

e At the close of the fiscal year, the City of Alpena’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund
balance of $7,038,039, an increase of $985,739 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 52.4%
of the combined ending fund balance is available for spending at the City’s discretion (unassigned fund
balance).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $3,684,718, or
38.5% of total General Fund expenditures and transfers to other funds, in comparison to $3,131,381 at the
close of the prior year, an increase of $553,337.

e The City’s total outstanding long-term debt obligations decreased by $6,379,868 from the prior year,
primarily due to a decrease in the net pension liability. Total debt obligations at June 30, 2021 were
$10,395,789 consisted of bonds and loans of $4,447,544, compensated absences of $288,734, a net pension
obligation of $4,389,236; and a net OPEB obligation of $1,270,275.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Alpena’s basic
financial statements. The City of Alpena’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also
contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City of Alpena’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Alpena’s assets, liabilities and deferred
inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Alpena is
improving or deteriorating.
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The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and
earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Alpena that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended
to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The
governmental activities of the City of Alpena include general government, public safety, public works, community
and economic development, and recreation and culture. The business-type activities of the City of Alpena include
sewage and water operations.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Alpena itself (known as the primary
government), but also two legally separate downtown development authorities, a brownfield redevelopment
authority, and a legally separate economic development corporation, for which the City of Alpena is financially
accountable. Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the financial information
presented for the primary government itself. The City of Alpena’s Building Authority, although also legally
separate, functions for all practical purposes as a department of the City of Alpena, and therefore has been included
as an integral part of the primary government.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 47-49 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Alpena, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
All of the funds of the City of Alpena can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The City of Alpena maintains eleven individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances for the General and Major Street Funds, both of which are considered to be major funds. Data from
the other nine governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for
each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this
report.

The City of Alpena adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General and Major Street Funds. A budgetary
comparison schedule has been provided for these major funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget as part
of the required supplemental information.
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The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 50-57 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City of Alpena maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used
to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
City of Alpena uses enterprise funds to account for its Water and Sewage Funds. Internal service funds are an
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City of Alpena’s various functions.
The City of Alpena uses internal service funds to account for its equipment and its stores supplies. Because these
services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Sewage and Water Funds,
both of which are considered to be major funds of the City of Alpena. Conversely, both internal service funds are
combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data
for the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 58-65 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of
those funds are not available to support the City of Alpena’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds
is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 66-67 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements
can be found on pages 72-119 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
required supplementary information concerning the City of Alpena’s progress in funding its obligation to provide
pension and OPEB benefits to its employees. The City also adopts annual appropriated budgets for its general and
major governmental funds. Budgetary comparison schedules are also presented. Required supplementary
information can be found on pages 121-129 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and internal service
funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information.

Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 132-179 of this report.

A Statistical Section with data reflecting information on financial trends, revenue capacity, debt capacity,
demographic, and economic trends of the City can be found on pages 181-210 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position over time, may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the

case of the City of Alpena, Michigan, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources by $59,202,757 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.
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Assets
Current and other assets
Capital assets

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Liabilities

Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferredinflows of resources

Net position

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net position

City of Alpena’s, Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
$ 9868807 $ 8604170 $ 7162351 $ 6358135 $ 17,031,158 $ 14,962,305
28,408,064 30,013,986 30,193,570 29,368,429 58,601,634 59,382,415
38,276,871 38,618,156 37,355,921 35,726,564 75,632,792 74,344,720
1,015,733 1,943,243 - - 1,015,733 1,943,243
735,038 670,287 440,292 436,345 1,175,330 1,106,632
6,732,531 12,733,954 3,123,819 3,498,819 9,856,350 16,232,773
7,467,569 13,404,241 3,564,111 3,935,164 11,031,680 17,339,405
6,414,088 2,553,478 - - 6,414,088 2,553,478
27,459,339 28,975,295 26,694,751 25,499,610 54,154,090 54,474,905
2,551,192 2,013,295 59,844 60,938 2,611,036 2,074,233
(4,599,584) (6,384,910) 7,037,215 6,230,852 2,437,631 (154,058)
$ 25410947 $ 24603680 $ 33,791,810 $ 31,791,400 $ 59,202,757 $ 56,395,080

By far the largest portion of the City of Alpena’s net position $54,154,090 (91.5%) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The City of Alpena uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets
are not available for future spending. Although the City of Alpena’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since

the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City of Alpena’s net position $2,611,036 (4.4%) represents resources that have
restrictions on how they may be used, (e.g. bond payments, perpetual lot care). The remaining portion of net position
of $2,437,631 (4.1%) represents the unrestricted net position.
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City of Alpena’s, Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Rewvenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 4394558 $ 4819207 $ 6801594 $ 630639 $ 11,196,152 $ 11,125,602
Operating grants and
contributions 2,869,365 2,587,738 - - 2,869,365 2,587,738
Capital grants and
contributions 3,310 205,692 - - 3,310 205,692
General revenues:
Property taxes 3,929,252 3,835,745 - - 3,929,252 3,835,745
Unrestricted state revenue 1,959,744 1,967,759 - - 1,959,744 1,967,759
Investment earnings 12,239 160,105 20,887 19,370 33,126 179,475
Miscellaneous - 8,765 - - - 8,765
Total revenues 13,168,468 13,585,011 6,822,481 6,325,765 19,990,949 19,910,776
Expenses
General government 3,293,492 3,333,847 - - 3,293,492 3,333,847
Public safety 5,554,734 6,574,287 - - 5,554,734 6,574,287
Public works 3,146,029 3,439,234 - - 3,146,029 3,439,234
Recreation and culture 479,251 765,937 - - 479,251 765,937
Interest on long-termdebt 29,628 30,164 - - 29,628 30,164
Sewage - - 2,328,230 2,429,060 2,328,230 2,429,060
Water - - 2,493,841 2,223,962 2,493,841 2,223,962
Total expenses 12,503,134 14,143,469 4,822,071 4,653,022 17,325,205 18,796,491
Change in net position 665,334 (558,458) 2,000,410 1,672,743 2,665,744 1,114,285
Net position - beginning, restated 24,745,613 25,162,138 31,791,400 30,118,657 56,537,013 55,280,795
Net position - ending $ 25410947 $ 24603680 $ 33,791,810 $ 31,791,400 $ 59,202,757 $ 56,395,080

The City of Alpena’s net position increased $2,665,744 during the current fiscal year. Key elements of this increase
are as follows:

Governmental activities experienced an increase in net position during the current fiscal year of $665,334 while
business-type activities had a positive change of $2,000,410.

The revenues of governmental activities decreased by $416,543 for the current fiscal year. Revenue for charges for
services was the primary reason for the decrease in revenue, decreasing by $424,649, due to there being a decrease
in ambulance revenue. In addition, capital grants and contributions decreased by $202,382, investment earnings
decreased by $147,866 and miscellaneous revenue decreased by $8,765. The decrease in capital grants was due to
a decrease in public safety revenue for a new ambulance vehicle and equipment that was received in 2020 and not
2021. The remaining revenue categories increased, with the largest increase in operating grants and contributions
of $281,627. The increase in operating grants and contributions was primarily due to an increase in federal grants
received through legislature stemming from the coronavirus. The City, Village, and Township Revenue Sharing,
CVTRS, has increased the last 8 out of 9 fiscal years. The City received an increase in revenue sharing of $97,335
in 2021 than 2020.
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Governmental activities expenses decreased by $1,640,335 in 2021 from the previous year. All departments
experienced a decrease with the most significant being the public safety department, $1,019,553, followed by a
decrease of $293,205 in public works and a decrease of $286,686 in recreation and culture. The two main reasons
for the overall decrease in expenses was due to the pension and other post-employment benefits (OPEB), which
decreased by $1,170,624 and $241,272, respectively.

Across all departments the cost of the post-retirement health insurance paid into the fund was 6% of budgeted
payroll.

The net cost of services for governmental activities decreased $1,294,931 from the 2019-20 fiscal year’s net cost of
$6,530,832. Revenue decreased from 2019-20 by $345,404 primarily due to public safety, which was due to a
decrease in charges for service over the 2019-20 fiscal year. Expenses decreased $1,640,335, which was discussed
previously.

Cost of Services — Governmental Activities

Total Cost of Services Program Revenues Net Cost of Services
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Functions/Programs:
General government $ 3293492 $ 3333847 $1691,657 $2157,205 $1,601,835 $1,176,642
Public safety 5,554,734 6,574,287 3051545 3,520,700 2,503,189 3,053,587
Public works 3,146,029 3439,234 2,465,631 1,823,486 680,398 1,615,748
Recreation and culture 479,251 765,937 50,133 111,246 429,118 654,691
Community and economic
development - - 8,267 - (8,267) -
Interest on long-term debt 29,628 30,164 - - 29,628 30,164
Total expenses $12503,134 $14,143469 $7,267,233 $7,612637 $5235901 $6,530,832

The City’s taxable value increased in 2020 by $7,096,501. The real property taxable values increased by
$2,766,501, while personal property taxable values increased by $4,330,000 for the 2020-21 fiscal year from the
previous year. Taxable values for personal property have begun to trend down due to The Small Business Personal
Property Exemption in 2014 and the Industrial Exemption in 2016. Revenue Sharing has remained fairly steady
since 2013-14. The City received $1,400,091 in 2020-21 and $1,302,756 in 2019-20. A number of documents are
required to be submitted annually to the State in order to receive the CVTRS.

Labor and benefit costs are approximately 76% of the final budget. The City has worked hard to keep health
insurance costs from rising. Employees have paid 20% of their premiums for several years.

The City’s pension system includes 97 retirees, 4 deferred retirees, and 60 active employees. The City has made
pension contributions of $942,781 for fiscal year 2019-20, $983,398 for fiscal year 2020-21, and $1,072,812 will be
paid for 2021-22. Along with health insurance, pensions are the most expensive employee benefits. Pension reform
has been implemented for all employees. Administrative employees and DPW hired after July 1, 2009 and Clerical
employees hired after July of 2010 will not be in the defined benefit plan, but rather a defined contribution plan.
New hires in the Public Safety department will continue to be in the defined benefit plan but their multiplier was
reduced from 3.00% to 2.25%. The City’s Pension Fund is currently at a funding level of 88.2%.
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Other efforts to reduce costs include re-bidding contracts, seeking out grant funds and reducing services without
eliminating them. All departments review work processes during the budget sessions and throughout the year to
improve efficiency as much as possible. The implementation of new tax and financial software has greatly increased
efficiency and has given us the opportunity to offer better customer service. The City accepts credit and debit cards
and on-line payment of taxes, tickets, and miscellaneous charges, which helps increase collections.

Revenues

Property taxes continue to be one of the largest sources of revenue. The City received $3,858,960 during fiscal year
2020-21. For 2020, the total City taxable valuation increased to $250,312,088 from $243,215,587 in 2019.
Valuations are increasing, however at a slow rate. For 2020, the total taxable valuation of $250,312,088, is an
increase of $7,096,501 from 2019. The City can levy up to 17.5 mills within the limits of the Charter, however due
to the Headlee Amendment and Proposal A, the City has been rolled back to 16.1066 mills. The 2020-21 total
millage for the City of Alpena homestead property was 37.3552 mills and non-homestead property was 55.3552
mills.

Much of the development in the City is done through tax abatements or exemption programs such as the Renaissance
Zones, OPRA, NEZ, or IFT’s. In the short term, this does not help increase tax revenues; however, the City will see
the benefits when the programs mature, and the properties are placed on the tax roll at 100%. The downtown NEZ
rehabilitation program has continued to be successful with 31 completed rehabs. Some of the NEZ abatements are
beginning to be phased back on to the tax roll at their full value.

Licenses and Permit revenue is dependent on the type and scope of construction for the year. Revenue decreased
from $644,932 in 2019-20 to $299,745 in 2020-21, primarily due to services provided for the expansion of the local
hospital that occurred in 2019-20 leading to the revenue to be higher than normal in the prior year.

State Revenue Sharing increased from $1,302,756 in 2019-20 to $1,400,091 in 2020-21. The revenue tends to
fluctuate every few years between increases and decreases.

State and Federal Grants were used in 2020-21 for projects in the City. Federal grant revenue was higher in 2020-
21 as compared to the previous year. The Downtown Development Authority continues to offer facade grants for
the business owners in the downtown area. Many building owners have taken advantage of this program and made
their building exteriors very pleasing.

All administrative charges for services are increased by 3.0% annually. Revenue for ambulance charges for services
decreased in 2020-21. The City’s contract with the Presque Isle Fire Department to provide service and transition
them into an independent fire service provider ended in March 2021. The City also has a partnership with
surrounding townships for EMS service at their locations five days per week.

The categories of investment income, fines and forfeitures and other are fairly steady overall. Fluctuations occur
for items such as a change in interest rates, donations received, vehicle sales, or insurance reimbursement.
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Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities
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Business-type Activities. The Enterprise Funds (the Water and Sewage Funds) are operated under contract by an
outside private contractor, SUEZ, formerly known as United Water NACO, LLC. The operations agreement with
SUEZ was renewed for a 4-year period ending on June 30, 2024.

The net cost of services in the business-type activities increased for both sewer and water. The sewage program had
a decrease in expenses and the water program had an increase in expenses for 2021 as compared to 2020.
Both programs had increased revenue for 2021 as compared to 2020.

Cost of Services — Business-type Activities

Total Cost of Services Program Revenues Net Cost of Services
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Functions/Programs:
Sewage $2291,311 $2388469 $3,071,242 $3031,720 $ (779931) $ (643,251)
Water 2,451,021 2,176,650 3,730,352 3274675  (1,279,331) (1,098,025)
Total expenses $4,742,332  $4,565119 $6,801594 $6,306,395 $(2,059,262) $(1,741,276)

The Sewage Fund’s total operating revenue increased by $39,522. The two main areas of revenue were sales and
septage treatment. The operating expenses in the Sewage Fund decreased by $97,158. The net non-operating
revenues increased by $25,819.

The Water Fund’s total operating revenue increased by $455,677 from fiscal year 2019-20 to 2020-21. The operating
expenses in the Water Fund increased $274,371. The net non-operating revenues increased by $1,102.

The revenues in the Sewage and Water Funds are primarily derived from charges for servcies, 99.7%, while non-
operating revenues derive the reamining .3%.
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Alpena uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Alpena’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City of Alpena’s
financing requirements. In particular unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of fiscal year 2020-21, the City of Alpena’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $7,038,039 an increase of $985,739 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 52.4% of this
total amount constitutes unassigned fund balance, $3,684,718, which is available for spending at the government’s
discretion. The remainder of fund balance falls into three categories: nonspendable, restricted, and committed.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Alpena. At the end of the fiscal year 2020-21, the fund
balance of the General Fund was $3,909,550, of which $3,684,718 was unassigned, $158,042 was committed for
specific purposes, $10,000 was restricted for specific purposes, and $56,790 was nonspendable. As a measure of the
General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unassigned fund balance represented 38.5% of total General Fund expenditures and operating transfers to other
funds.

Management advised council that the fund balance should be on the high side because of the uncertainty of the state
revenue sharing program and the uncertainties related to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The fund balance of the City of Alpena’s General Fund increased by $434,964 during the 2020-21 fiscal year. This
was an increase of fund balance of about 12.5%. Property tax revenues increased $91,604 over fiscal year 2019-20
due to an increase in taxable valuations. In addition public safety department expenditures decreased $934,268
compared to the prior fiscal year.

The Major Street Fund has a fund balance of $859,789, which is an increase from last year’s fund balance by
$416,952. This was an increase of fund balance of about 94.2%. The main factor for the increase was due to a
decrease in expenditures of $583,879, primarily due to a decrease in maintenance and construction expenditures.
The fund balance of the Major Street Fund represents funds restricted for streets and highways.

The Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of $10,784, all of which is reserved for the payment of debt service.
The net decrease in fund balance during the current year in the debt service fund is $1,408.

Proprietary funds. The City of Alpena’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the
government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Sewage and Water Funds at the end of the year amounted to $3,756,546 and
$3,280,669, respectively. The change in net position for the Sewage and Water funds was an increase of $760,781
and $1,239,629, respectively. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in
the discussion of the City of Alpena’s business-type activities.
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

At year-end the revenue was $147,104 less than the final budget and $84,033 less than received last fiscal year. The
two largest contributing factors for the slight decrease were local and investment income revenue. Local and
investment income revenue decreased by $165,408 and $97,037, respectively, over the last fiscal year. Property tax,
state, and federal revenue all increased by $91,604, $27,616, and $61,964, respectively over fiscal year 2019-20.

There was a net decrease of about $29,000 between the original and final amended budget for expenditures,
including transfers to other funds. The largest change in expenditures by function was general government, which
had budget amendments increasing the expenditure by almost $190,000 between the original and final budget. In
addition, the state revenue budget was amended with an increase of about $208,000.

The City’s General Fund actual expenditure amounts came in under the final budget by $432,149. The largest
variance from the final budget was for public safety, which accounts for $269,335 of the difference.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Historical cost:
Land
Construction in progress
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Net capital assets

City of Alpena’s, Capital Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
3,237,864 $ 3,237,864 12 12 3237876 $ 3,237,876
117,610 134,951 1,304,000 93,068 1,421,610 228,019
6,747,561 6,711,603 566,355 566,355 7,313,916 7,277,958
10,316,465 10,242,500 7,423,162 7,305,767 17,739,627 17,548,267
9,081,738 8,811,481 3,075,462 2,880,823 12,157,200 11,692,304
51,285,305 51,192,562 44,198,857 43,864,153 95,484,162 95,056,715
80,786,543 80,330,961 56,567,848 54,710,178 137,354,391 135,041,139
(3,797,679) (3,614,577) (314,907) (300,267) (4,112,586) (3,914,844)
(5,224,571) (5,013,597) (3533,773) (3,387,182) (8,758,344) (8,400,779)
(7,633,182) (7,141,411) (2,101,977) (2,020,844) (9,735,159) (9,162,255)
(35,723,047) (34,547,390 (20,423,621) (19,633,456) (56,146,668) (54,180,846)
(52,378,479) (50,316,975) (26,374,278) (25,341,749) (78,752,757) (75,658,724)

$ 28408064 $ 30013986 $ 30193570 $ 29368429 $ 58,601,634 $ 59,382,415

Capital assets. The City of Alpena’s net investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as
of June 30, 2021, amounted to $58,601,634. The infrastructure of the City has been a high priority and we have committed
much of our capital project money to improve the roads, bridges, sidewalks, and water/sewer lines.

During the year ended June 30, 2021 the City of Alpena had an overall decrease of $1,605,922 to its governmental
activities capital assets as a result of capital asset depreciation exceeding additions. Business-type activities capital assets
increased by $825,141, which was the result of capital asset additions exceeding depreciation charges.

Additional information on the City of Alpena’s capital assets can be found in the footnote disclosure in Note 6 on pages

89-91 of this report.
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City of Alpena’s Outstanding Debt

City of Alpena’s, Outstanding Debt
Bonds and Loans

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
General obligation bonds $ - $ - $ 450000 $ 500000 $ 450,000 $ 500,000
Building authority bonds 945,000 1,030,000 - - 945,000 1,030,000
Installment contracts 3,725 8,691 - - 3,725 8,691
State of M| Revolving Fund - - 3048819 3368819 3048819 3,368,819

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Alpena (primary government) had total debt from bonds and loans
outstanding of $4,447,544. Of this amount, there was $945,000 of building authority bonds and installment contracts of
$3,725. The remainder of the City of Alpena’s debt of $3,498,819 represents the long-term obligations of the Sewage
and Water Funds. Of this amount, $450,000 comprises general obligation bonds and $3,048,819 is a direct borrowing

$ 948,725 $1,038691 $3498819 $3868819 $4447544  $4,907510

through the State of Michigan revolving fund.

The City of Alpena decreased its total debt from bonds and loans by $459,966 during the current fiscal year.

Additional information on the City of Alpena’s long-term debt can be found in Note 7 on pages 91-95 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

Property tax revenue makes up 40% of the 2020-21 budget. The 2020-21 budgeted revenue increased by
$108,992 to $3,985,365 from the 2019-20 level of $3,876,373. The 2021-22 budget projects property tax
revenues of $3,983,400 which includes $114,000 for the property tax administration fee that was assessed
beginning in tax year 2019.

The taxable value increased from $243,215,587 for 2019 to $250,312,088 in 2020.

The City has been successful in incorporating many economic development tools that attract businesses
and residences to the area. Currently there are Neighborhood Enterprise Zones, Renaissance Zones,
Personal Property Tax Abatements, Commercial Rehabilitation Exemptions, Brownfield’s and Industrial
Facility Tax Abatements. The Downtown Rental Development program has resulted in the construction of
31 new residential rental units.

The City utilized a grant from the Michigan Land Bank for the removal of the former Alpena Power
Building located downtown. Most of the building had been vacant for 12 years. The building has been
demolished and the riverfront site is being marketed for development.
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= |In 2016, the Alpena Regional Trailhead located off Woodward Avenue was completed. In 2018, a splash
park was constructed at Starlite Beach along with several other improvements to the walkability of the park.
Both projects utilized MDNR Trust Fund grants and were supported by various community groups
including the Alpena Rotary Club who contributed $200,000 of matching funds for the splash park.

e Interest in Alpena continues to bring new businesses and activities to the area. We have seen new office
buildings erected, several public art installations around the City, and the renovation of numerous buildings
as well. Several businesses now have tables and chairs outside in the summer months. The City upgraded
the downtown pocket park and opened a dog park in North Riverfront Park.

e The Thunder Bay National Marine Sanctuary and Underwater Preserve operated by NOAA attracts
approximately 90,000 tourists annually to tour the facility and dive among the shipwrecks. Their site along
the Thunder Bay River is also the home of a glass bottom boat that takes visitors out to tour the lighthouses
and shipwrecks in Thunder Bay. The Sanctuary hosts the Maritime Festival in July.

e The Sanctuary also periodically hosts an international robotics competition in their outdoor diving tank.
Teams from all over the world came to participate in the event.

e The City has Mobile Food Vendors in several of the City parks during the summer season.

e A covered bridge and water tower at the Wildlife Sanctuary was completed by a local businessman. It is a
beautiful site drawing many visitors and has become a local favorite for photo opportunities.

e The City continues to partner with local entrepreneurs to offer kayak and canoe rentals in the Wildlife
Sanctuary throughout the summer months.

Council Policy 55 — “Fund Balance Policy” requires that a minimum of 10% of expenditures and a maximum of
20% be in the fund balance of the General Fund. The fund balance for 2020-21 is $3,909,550. The unassigned portion
is $3,684,718. The unassigned fund balance represents 38.5% of total General Fund expenditures. Due to the
uncertainty of future reimbursements by the state for personal property tax exemptions, and the always present
possibility of more changes to state revenue sharing, Council approved a fund balance over the 20% maximum.

Another area that continues to impact the City’s finances is funding the City of Alpena Employees Retirement Fund.
We have had a healthy Retirement Fund with over 100% funding since 1985, and from 1999 - 2004, the City was
required to make contributions for the Firemen’s group only. Since 2006, the employer contributions have increased
significantly over all employee groups due to the low return on investments and the reduction of surplus funds. The
funding level of the retirement system dropped to 76.5% as of the June 30, 2020 valuation date. The 2020-21
contribution to the retirement system was $983,398. The 2021-22 contribution will be $1,072,812. The City moved
towards a phase-out of the defined benefit plan for new hires and has replaced it with a defined contribution plan.
As of July 1, 2009, all new hires in Administration and DPW were enrolled in a defined contribution plan rather than
the defined benefit plan. As of July 1, 2010, all new hires in the Clerical department were enrolled in a defined
contribution plan rather than the defined benefit plan. As of July 1, 2011, all new hires in the Public Safety
Department are members of the defined benefit plan and have a multiplier of 2.25%. In December 2018, the City
hired a new investment advisor to manage the pension assets.

The June 30, 2021, Actuarial Valuation Report of the City’s Post-Retirement Health Care Fund reported our
unfunded accrued liability at $1,270,275. The City budgeted 6% of fiscal year 2021-22 payroll to be put into the
Post-Retirement Health Care Fund. While this does not keep us at the suggested funding rate, it does help us stay
ahead of the annual premium costs.
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Since 2014, the City has implemented a rate methodology based on actual costs incurred in the operation of the water
and wastewater systems, the debt associated with each utility, and a portion of the capital needs of the two systems.
The City has been increasing the per-unit cost associated with the capital needs annually towards achieving the
funding levels needed to meet the capital demands. While still below the funds needed, the rate methodology being
utilized is improving the position of the two utilities in meeting those needs.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Alpena’s finances for all those with
an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or

requests for additional information should be addressed to the Office of the City Clerk/Treasurer/Finance Director,
208 N. First Avenue, City of Alpena, Alpena, MI 49707. E-mail: annas@alpena.mi.us
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City of Alpena
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5488448 $ 3626892 $ 9115340 $ 488,482
Investments, at fair value 2,754,211 - 2,754,211 -
Receivables, net 1,236,637 3,537,497 4,774,134 7,356
Internal balances 3,004 (3,004) - -
Due from primary government - - - 20,599
Due from component units - - - 1,925
Inventories 321,914 - 321,914 -
Prepaid expense 64,593 966 65,559 285
Capital assets not being depreciated 3,355,474 1,304,012 4,659,486 93,756
Capital assets being depreciated, net 25,052,590 28,889,558 53,942,148 151,854
Total assets 38,276,871 37,355,921 75,632,792 764,257
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred outflows related to pension 591,225 - 591,225 -
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 424,508 - 424,508 -
Total deferred outflows of resources 1,015,733 - 1,015,733 -
Liabilities
Accounts payable 241,182 37,937 279,119 67
Deposits payable 30,175 2,875 33,050 -
Accrued payroll 271,743 5,331 277,074 5,733
Accrued interest payable 6,900 19,149 26,049 -
Due to component units 20,599 - 20,599 1,925
Unearned revenue - - - 9,195
Compensated absences 77,648 - 77,648 -
Bonds and loans 86,791 375,000 461,791 3,636
Long-term liabilities:
Due in more than one year
Compensated absences 211,086 - 211,086 -
Bonds and loans 861,934 3,123,819 3,985,753 39,150
Net OPEB liability 1,270,275 - 1,270,275 -
Net pension liability 4,389,236 - 4,389,236 -
Total liabilities 7,467,569 3,564,111 11,031,680 59,706
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred inflows related to pension 3,577,041 - 3,577,041 -
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 2,837,047 - 2,837,047 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 6,414,088 - 6,414,088 -
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 27,459,339 26,694,751 54,154,090 202,824
Restricted for:
Cemetery care
Nonexpendable 996,068 - 996,068 -
Expendable 3,233 - 3,233 -
Streets and highways 1,485,664 - 1,485,664 -
Building inspection 24,554 - 24,554 -
Tree/park improvement 20,889 - 20,889 -
Debt service 10,784 59,844 70,628 -
Donor imposed 10,000 - 10,000 -
Unrestricted (4,599,584) 7,037,215 2,437,631 501,727
Total net position $ 25,410,947 $ 33,791,810 $ 59,202,757 $ 704,551
See accompanying notes to financial statements. -47 -
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Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Functions/Programs
Primary Government

Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Recreation and culture
Community and economic development
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Sewage
Water

Total business-type activities
Total primary government

Component Units
Downtown Development Authority No.2
Downtown Development Authority No.5
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority
Economic Development Corporation

Program Revenues

Operating Capital

Charges for Grants and Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions
$ 3293492 § 1,591,418 § 100,239  $ -
5,554,734 1,972,501 1,075,734 3,310
3,146,029 772,239 1,693,392 -
479,251 50,133 - -
- 8,267 - -
29,628 - - -
12,503,134 4,394,558 2,869,365 3,310
2,328,230 3,071,242 - -
2,493,841 3,730,352 - -
4,822,071 6,801,594 - -
$ 17325205 § 11,196,152 § 2,869,365 $ 3,310
$ 180,775  $ 3,530  § - S -
43,951 9,325 - -
148,207 - 79,114 -
$ 372,933  $ 12,855  § 79,114  § -

General revenues:

Property taxes

Unrestricted state revenue
Investment earnings
Total general revenues

Change in Net Position

Net Position, beginning of year, restated (Note 20)

Net Position, end of year
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$ (1,601,835) § - $ (1,601,835) § -
(2,503,189) - (2,503,189) -
(680,398) - (680,398) -
(429,118) - (429,118) -
8,267 - 8,267 -
(29,628) - (29,628) -
(5,235,901) - (5,235,901) -
- 743,012 743,012 -
- 1,236,511 1,236,511 -
- 1,979,523 1,979,523 -
(5,235,901) 1,979,523 (3,256,378) -
- - - (177,245)
. - - (34,626)
- - - (69,093)
- - - (280,964)
3,929,252 - 3,929,252 260,794
1,959,744 - 1,959,744 4,627
12,239 20,887 33,126 12,683
5,901,235 20,887 5,922,122 278,104
665,334 2,000,410 2,665,744 (2,860)
24,745,613 31,791,400 56,537,013 707,411
$ 25,410,947 $ 33,791,810 $ 59,202,757 $ 704,551

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



City of Alpena
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds

June 30, 2021

Major
General Street
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,944,081 685,507
Investments, at fair value 1,781,969 -
Accounts receivable, net 366,243 -
Taxes receivable 330,541 -
Interest receivable 11,948 -
Due from other governmental units 267,347 184,341
Due from other funds 5,216 -
Prepaid expenditures 56,790 1,986
Total assets $ 4,764,135 871,834
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 214,253 282
Deposits payable 30,175 -
Accrued payroll 245,287 6,374
Due to component units 20,599 -
Due to other funds 13,901 5,389
Total liabilities 524,215 12,045
Deferred inflows of resources:
Unavailable revenue, property taxes 330,370 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 330,370 -
Fund balances:
Nonspendable 56,790 1,986
Restricted 10,000 857,803
Committed 158,042 -
Unassigned 3,684,718 -
Total fund balances 3,909,550 859,789
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and fund balances $ 4,764,135 871,834
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Other Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds
$ 2,028,733 $ 4,658,321

211,843 1,993,812

7,487 373,730

- 330,541

405 12,353

63,250 514,938

- 5,216

4,705 63,481

$ 2,316,423 $ 7,952,392
$ 15,183 $ 229,718
- 30,175

16,973 268,634

- 20,599

15,567 34,857

47,723 583,983

- 330,370

- 330,370

1,000,773 1,059,549
687,321 1,555,124
580,606 738,648

- 3,684,718

2,268,700 7,038,039

$ 2,316,423 $ 7,952,392

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Alpena

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2021

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 7,038,039

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore not reported in the governmental funds.

Capital assets not being depreciated $ 3,355,474
Capital assets being depreciated, net 25,052,590
Less capital assets accounted for in internal service funds (630,999) 27,777,065

Long-term debt and compensated absences are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore have not been included
in the governmental funds.

Compensated absences (288,734)
Bonds payable (945,000)
Installment purchase agreements (3,725) (1,237,459)

Certain pension and OPEB related amounts, such as the net liability
and deferred amounts are not due and payable in the current period

or do not represent current financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the governmental funds.

Net pension liability (4,389,236)

Deferred outflows related to the net pension liability 591,225

Deferred inflows related to the net pension liability (3,577,041) (7,375,052)
Net OPEB liability (1,270,275)

Deferred outflows related to the net OPEB liability 424,508

Deferred inflows related to the net OPEB liability (2,837,047) (3,682,814)

Accrued interest payable for the current portion of interest due on
bonds has not been reported in the governmental funds. (6,900)

Deferred inflows of resources in the governmental funds is
susceptible to full accrual on the government-wide statements. 330,370

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs

of certain activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of

internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the

statement of net position. 2,567,698

Net position of governmental activities $ 25,410,947

See accompanying notes to financial statements. -53-



City of Alpena

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Revenues
Property taxes
Licenses and permits
State revenue
Federal revenue
Local grant revenue
Charges for services
Investment income and rents
Fines and forfeitures
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current operations:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Recreation and culture
Debt service:
Principal retirement
Interest and fees
Total expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in

Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, beginning of year, restated (Note 20)

Fund Balances, end of year

Major
General Street
3,858,960 -
30,547 -
2,028,618 1,282,296
143,239 -
967,170 -
2,794,733 -
59,684 2,884
13,127 -
115,689 5,617
10,011,767 1,290,797
1,861,164 -
5,171,133 -
842,070 698,845
1,340,833 -
9,215,200 698,845
796,567 591,952
(361,603) (175,000)
(361,603) (175,000)
434,964 416,952
3,474,586 442 837
3,909,550 859,789

-54 -



Other Total
Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds

$ - $ 3,858,960
269,198 299,745
411,096 3,722,010
- 143,239
- 967,170
63,424 2,858,157
34,974 97,542
- 13,127
19,752 141,058
798,444 12,101,008
1,629 1,862,793
427,459 5,598,592
460,272 2,001,187
122,849 1,463,682
85,000 85,000
29,263 29,263
1,126,472 11,040,517
(328,028) 1,060,491
461,851 461,851

- (536,603)

461,851 (74,752)
133,823 985,739
2,134,877 6,052,300
$ 2,268,700 $ 7,038,039

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Alpena
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,

and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
to the Government-Wide Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is
depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Capital outlay $ 272,695
Depreciation expense (1,846,849)

The borrowing of and repayment of bond and land purchase loan
principal is an other financing source and expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the borrowings increase long-term liabilities
and the repayments reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of
net position.

Bond principal payments 85,000
Installment contract payments 4,966
Installment purchase agreement payment change in accrual (2,116)

Some revenues (costs) reported in the statement of activities do not
provide current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
revenues in governmental funds.

Change in deferred inflow of resources - unearned revenue
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require

the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported
as expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in accrued interest payable 361
Change in long-term compensated absences 54,536
Change in net pension liability 544,314
Change in long-term OPEB obligations 532,932

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs
of certain activities to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of
the internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Change in net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

$ 985,739

(1,574,154)

87,850

70,292

1,132,143

(36,536)

$ 665334
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City of Alpena

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2021

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments, at fair value
Accounts receivable, net
Interest receivable
Due from other funds
Inventories
Prepaid expenditures

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Deposits payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued interest payable
Due to other funds

Bonds and notes payable, current portion

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds and notes payable

Total liabilities

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:
Debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Sewage Water
2,800,634 826,258
1,018,677 2,518,820

553 413
3,819,864 3,345,491
592,610 711,402
15,688,436 13,201,122
16,281,046 13,912,524
20,100,910 17,258,015
17,375 20,562

- 2,875

4,155 1,176
8,862 10,287
3,004 -
190,000 185,000
223,396 219,900
1,610,659 1,513,160
1,834,055 1,733,060
14,480,387 12,214,364
29,922 29,922
3,756,546 3,280,669
18,266,855 15,524,955
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Enterprise Funds -
Current Year Totals

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

$ 3,626,892 $ 830,127
- 760,399
3,537,497 2,694
- 2,381

- 32,645

- 321,914

966 1,112
7,165,355 1,951,272
1,304,012 -
28,889,558 630,999
30,193,570 630,999
37,358,925 2,582,271
37,937 11,464
2,875 -
5,331 3,109
19,149 -
3,004 -
375,000 -
443,296 14,573
3,123,819 -
3,567,115 14,573
26,694,751 630,999
59,844 -
7,037,215 1,936,699
$ 33,791,810 $ 2,567,698

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



City of Alpena

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Operating Revenues

Charges for services
Other services
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies and durable goods
Gas and oil
Professional and contractual
Administrative services
Insurance
Utilities
Repairs and maintenance
Equipment rental
Miscellaneous
Other operating expenses
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment income and rents
Interest expense

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Transfers

Transfers in

Change in Net Position
Net Position, beginning of year

Net Position, end of year

Net income (loss) before transfers and special item

Sewage Water
$ 3,061,888 3,470,307
9,354 260,045
3,071,242 3,730,352
38,905 34,425
23,197 16,496
26,374 144,865
973,032 879,651
231,574 231,574
21,317 20,621
286,866 134,513
14,558 498,662
64,856 16,452
373 27,261
610,259 446,501
2,291,311 2,451,021
779,931 1,279,331
17,769 3,118
(36,919) (42,820)
(19,150) (39,702)
760,781 1,239,629
760,781 1,239,629
17,506,074 14,285,326
$ 18,266,855 15,524,955
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Enterprise Funds -  Governmental Activities -

Current Year Totals Internal Service Funds
$ 6,532,195 $ 994,620
269,399 -

6,801,594 994,620

73,330 59,294

39,693 48,025

171,239 113,927

- 69,998

1,852,683 2,058

463,148 425,939

41,938 22,772

421,379 -

513,220 122,442

81,308 1,009

27,634 802

1,056,760 242,190
4,742,332 1,108,456
2,059,262 (113,836)

20,887 2,548

(79,739) -

(58,852) 2,548
2,000,410 (111,288)

- 74,752
2,000,410 (36,536)
31,791,400 2,604,234

$ 33,791,810 $ 2,567,698

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



City of Alpena

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from interfund service provided
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Payments for interfund services used

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers from other funds
Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of investments
Interest and dividends received

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Sewage Water
2,984,153 $ 3,417,502
(1,390,047) (1,723,6006)

(59,369) (51,033)
(229,262) (231,996)
1,305,475 1,410,867
(879,145) (1,002,756)
(185,000) (185,000)
(37,842) (43,943)
(1,101,987) (1,231,699)
17,769 3,118
17,769 3,118
221,257 182,286
2,579,377 643,972
2,800,634 $ 826,258
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Enterprise Funds -
Current Year Totals

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

$ 6,401,655 $ -
- 997,579
(3,113,653) (400,940)
(110,402) (106,415)
(461,258) (408,950)

2,716,342 81,274

- 74,752

- 74,752
(1,881,901) (210,422)
(370,000) -

(81,785) -
(2,333,686) (210,422)
- (200,000)

20,887 10,575
20,887 (189,425)
403,543 (243,821)

3,223,349 1,073,948

$ 3,626,892 $ 830,127

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Alpena

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds (continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Sewage Water

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash

Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) 779,931 $ 1,279,331

Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 610,259 446,501

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (87,089) (315,725)

(Increase) decrease in due from other funds - -

(Increase) decrease in advance to other funds - -

(Increase) decrease in inventories - -

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenditures 234 17

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (2,905) (1,598)

Increase (decrease) in deposits payable - 2,875

Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll 2,733 (112)

Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 2,312 (422)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 1,305,475 $ 1,410,867
Non-Cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities

Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments - $ -

-64 -



Enterprise Funds -
Current Year Totals

Governmental Activities -
Internal Service Funds

$ 2,059262 $ (113,836)
1,056,760 242,190
(402,814) 2,959
; (11,011)

; 28,000
- (72,656)
251 (189)

(4,503) 4,724

2,875 -

2,621 1,093

1,890 -

$ 2,716,342 $ 81,274
$ -5 (8,217)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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City of Alpena

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2021

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments, at fair value:
Short-term investment funds
Fixed income
Equity securities

Taxes receivable

Interest receivable

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other governmental units

Total liabilities

Net Position
Net position restricted for:

Pension
OPEB

Trust Funds Custodial Fund
Pension Trust
(and Other and
Employee Benefit) Agency Fund
$ - $ 48,743
594,718 -
9,231,377 -
24,966,097 -
- 330,998
64,405 -
34,856,597 379,741
28,022 12,982
- 366,759
28,022 379,741
32,803,665 -
2,024,910 -
$ 34,828,575 $ -
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City of Alpena

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Additions
Contributions:
Employer
Employees
Total contributions

Investment income:

Net increase (decrease) in fair value of investments

Gain (loss) on securities sold
Interest and dividends

Less investment expense
Net investment income

Property taxes collected
Fines, fees and miscellaneous
Total contributions
Total additions
Deductions
Benefits
Lump-sum retirement payments
Administrative expense
Miscellaneous
Distributions to other governments
Total deductions
Change in Net Position

Net Position, beginning of year

Net Position, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

Trust Funds

Custodial Fund

Pension
(and Other
Employee Benefit)

Trust
and

Agency Fund

$ 1,292,278
180,880

1,473,158

6,532,056
954,318
580,789

8,067,163
145,586

7,921,577

11,049,668
5,258

11,054,926

9,394,735

11,054,926

2,382,118
495,843
44,769

(5,978)

11,054,926

2,916,752

11,054,926

6,477,983

28,350,592

$ 34,828,575
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City of Alpena
Statement of Net Position - Component Units

June 30, 2021

Downtown Downtown
Development Development
Authority Authority
No. 2 No. 5

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 241,035 $ (494)

Taxes receivable - 67

Loans receivable - -

Due from primary government 20,599 -

Due from other component units - 1,925

Prepaid items 242 43

Capital assets not being depreciated 93,756 -

Capital assets being depreciated, net 151,854 -
Total assets 507,486 1,541
Liabilities

Accounts payable - 67

Accrued payroll 4,270 1,463

Due to other component units 1,925 -

Unearned revenue - 11

Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year
Bonds and loans 3,636 -
Due in more than one year
Bonds and loans 39,150 -

Total liabilities 48,981 1,541
Net Position

Net investment in capital assets 202,824 -

Unrestricted 255,681 -
Total net position $ 458,505  $ -
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Brownfield Economic
Redevelopment Development
Authority Corporation Total
$ 244,229 $ 3,712 488,482
- - 67
7,289 - 7,289
- - 20,599
- - 1,925
- - 285
- - 93,756
- - 151,854
251,518 3,712 764,257
- - 67
- - 5,733
- - 1,925
9,184 - 9,195
- - 3,636
- - 39,150
9,184 - 59,706
- - 202,824
242,334 3,712 501,727
$ 242,334 $ 3,712 704,551

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



City of Alpena

Statement of Activities - Component Units

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Downtown Development Authority No.2
Downtown Development Authority No.5
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority

Economic Development Corporation

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions
$ 180,775  § 3,530 § - S -
43,951 9,325 - -
148,207 - 79,114 -
$ 372933 § 12,855  § 79,114  § -

General revenues:
Property taxes

Unrestricted state shared revenues
Investment earnings
Total general revenues

Change in Net Position

Net Position, beginning of year

Net Position, end of year
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Downtown Downtown
Development Development Brownfield Economic
Authority Authority Redevelopment Development
No. 2 No. 5 Authority Corporation Total
$ (177,245)  § - S - 5 - 8 (177,245)
- (34,626) - - (34,626)
- - (69,093) - (69,093)
(177,245) (34,626) (69,093) - (280,964)
143,628 21,041 96,125 - 260,794
4,627 - - - 4,627
3,953 8,729 - 1 12,683
152,208 29,770 96,125 1 278,104
(25,037) (4,856) 27,032 1 (2,860)
483,542 4,856 215,302 3,711 707,411
$ 458,505  $ - $ 242,334 § 3,712 § 704,551

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



City of Alpena

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

The accounting policies of the City of Alpena, Michigan (the “City””) conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) as applicable to governmental units. Accounting and
financial pronouncements are promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”). The
following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used by the City of Alpena, Michigan:

A. Reporting Entity.

The City was incorporated in 1871 and covers an area of approximately 8.4 square miles. The City operates
under an elected Municipal Council (consisting of the Mayor and four members) and provides services to
approximately 10,197 residents (2020 census) in many areas including law enforcement, fire, water, sewer,
community enrichment and development, and human services.

The accompanying financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the
government is considered to be financially accountable. Although blended component units are legal separate
entities, in substance, they are part of the government’s operations. Each discretely presented component unit is
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that they are legally
separate from the government, although the government has the ability to impose its will over the entities. The
criteria established by GASB for determining the reporting entity includes financial accountability and whether
the financial statements would be misleading if data were not included.

Blended component units - A blended component unit is a legally separate entity from the City, but is so
intertwined with the City that it is, in substance, the same as the City of Alpena. It is reported as a part of the City
and blended into the appropriate fund types.

Building Authority - The City of Alpena Building Authority is governed by a three-member board appointed
by the City’s governing body. Although it is legally separate from the City, the Building Authority is
reported as if it were a part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to finance and construct
the City’s public buildings.

Discretely presented component units - The component units' columns in the government-wide combined
financial statements include the financial data of the City's four component units. These units are reported in a
separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City.

City of Alpena Downtown Development Authority (DDA) No. 2 and No. 5 — (governmental fund type)
City approves operating budget
City appoints governing board

City issues bonds to finance Authority projects
Surplus funds existing at termination of Authority vest to the City

The Downtown Development Authorities were organized to promote and rehabilitate the downtown area.
The Authorities also sponsor downtown events.

Brownfield Redevelopment Authority — (governmental fund type)
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City of Alpena

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. (continued)

The City of Alpena Brownfield Redevelopment Authority was created under Act 381, of P.A. 1996 of the
State of Michigan to promote the revitalization, redevelopment, and reuse of contaminated, blighted and
functionally obsolete properties within the City of Alpena through the use of Tax Increment Financing and
State Single Business Tax credits. The Authority is governed by a six-member board appointed by the Mayor
with approval of the City Council. In addition, the City Council is responsible for approving the Authority’s
budget.

City of Alpena Economic Development Corporation (EDC) - (governmental fund type)

 City appoints governing board
» City approves issuance of bonds to finance projects
» Surplus funds existing at termination of the EDC vest to City

The EDC was created to encourage business development and job creation within the City. The EDC
provides loans to start up or expanding businesses.

Separate financial statements for the four discretely presented component units are not prepared. Questions about
these organizations may be directed to the City of Alpena Clerk-Treasurer.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements.

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For the
most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities,
normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially
accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segments
are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment; and (2) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenue.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary funds, fiduciary funds, and component unit financial statements.
Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing
of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities), and do not involve the measurement of results
of operations.
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City of Alpena

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. (continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized as soon as it is both measurable and available.
Revenue is considered to be available if it is collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.

Property taxes, state-shared revenue, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period. Grants with eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider are also susceptible to accrual when the requirements are met. All other
revenue items are considered to be available only when cash is received by the government. Expenditures
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service
expenditures, expenditures relating to compensated absences, and claims and judgments are recorded only when
payment is due.

The government reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund. This fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Major Street Fund. This fund accounts for the resources of state gas and weight tax revenues that are

restricted for use on City streets that have been designated as major by the Michigan Department of

Transportation. This fund is deemed to be a major fund due to its importance to financial statement users.
The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

Sewage Fund. Accounts for the activities associated with the collection and purification of wastewater.

Water Fund. Accounts for the activities related to water production, purification, distribution and billing.

Additionally, the City of Alpena reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds. Account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditure for specified services.

Capital Project Funds. These funds are used to account for the acquisition or construction of capital
facilities.

Debt Service Funds. Account for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest
on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

Internal Service Funds. Account for major machinery and equipment purchases and maintenance, as well
as supply inventory services provided to other departments of the government on a cost reimbursement basis.

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds. These account for the activities of the City of
Alpena’s employee retirement system which accumulates resources for pension benefit payments to qualified
employees and funding of employee health care benefits.

Agency Funds. These funds are used to account for property and payroll taxes collected and distributed to
other governments in an agency capacity.
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City of Alpena

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. (continued)

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government’s water and sewer function and
various other functions of the government. Eliminations of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenue include: (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or
privileges provided; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and contributions, including
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenue rather than as program
revenue. Likewise, general revenue includes all taxes.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position of fund balances
are available, the City’s policy is to first apply restricted resources. When an expense is incurred for purposes for
which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used, it is the City’s policy to
spend funds in this order: committed, assigned, and then unassigned.

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity.

Cash and Investments. The City maintains and controls two cash and investment pools in which the primary
government and component unit’s share. Each fund’s or component unit’s portion of a pool is displayed on its
respective balance sheet. Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, pooled
cash, certificates of deposit and short-term investments with a maturity of three months or less when acquired.
Investments are stated at fair value which is determined using selective bases. Securities traded on a national
exchange are valued at the last reported sales price.

Receivables and Payables. In general, outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other
funds.” Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year is referred to as “advances to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and the business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements
as “internal balances.”

All trade and property tax receivables are shown as net of allowance for uncollectible amounts. Property taxes are
levied on each July 1st and December 1st on the taxable valuation of property as of the preceding December 31st.
Taxes are considered delinquent on March 1st of the following year, at which time penalties and interest are
assessed.

Inventories and Prepaid Items. Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value, on a first-in,
first-out basis. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as prepaid
items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.
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City of Alpena

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. (continued)

Deferred Outflows of Resources. In addition to assets, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will
sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element
represents a consumption of net position that applies to one or more future periods and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The government reports deferred outflows of
resources for changes in expected and actual investment returns, assumptions, and benefits provided in its pension
and OPEB plans as well as for the deferred loss on refunding. A deferred refunding loss results from the
difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and
amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

Capital Assets. Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with
an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Land improvements 20 to 25 years
Buildings 40 to 45 years
Building improvements 15 to 45 years
Machinery and equipment 3 to 45 years

Infrastructure 10 to 75 years

Compensated Absences (Vacation and Sick Leave). City employees are granted vacation and sick leave in
varying amounts based on length of service and union contracts. Vacation pay is fully vested when earned; upon
termination, employees are paid accumulated vacation at their regular pay rates to a limit of 100% of their current
annual earned vacation.

Administrative and non-union employees hired prior to May 19, 2003 are granted 120 days of sick leave at the
time of hire. If after using some or all of his/her sick leave, an employee goes six (6) months without missing a
scheduled day of work, his/her sick leave bank is restored to 120 days. For employees hired on or after May 19,
2003, the number of sick days is 90. At termination, death, or retirement, no payment is made to an
administrative or non-union employee (or heirs) for unused sick leave.

Clerical employees, Public Works employees, Police Patrol, and Police Command Officers earn sick leave at the
rate of eight hours for each full month of service, and FirefighterssEMS employees earn sick leave at the rate of
12 hours for each full month of service or if they regularly work 40 hours per week, then they earn sic k leave at
the rate of eight hours for each month of service. The caps are as follows:

Days
Clerical employees 90
Public Works employees 90
Police Patrol 90
Police Command Officers 90
FirefighterssEMS employees unlimited
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City of Alpena

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. (continued)

Upon retirement, clerical employees are paid for one-half of their accumulated sick leave based on their hourly
straight-time rate of pay at the time of retirement. No payments for unused sick leave are made at termination or
death.

Upon retirement, public works employees shall receive one-half of his or her accumulated sick leave. However,
the pay is not to exceed one-half of 75 days. This payment is based on the hourly straight time rate at the time of
retirement. Public works employees hired on or after July 1, 2011, shall not receive the payout of accumulated
sick leave upon retirement.

Police Patrol employees hired prior to July 1, 2011, upon retirement or death, shall receive one-half of their
accumulated sick leave based on the employee’s average hourly straight-time rate at the time of retirement.
Police patrol employees hired after July 1, 2011, upon retirement or death, shall receive their accumulated sick
leave, not to exceed $500.

Police Command Officers hired before July 1, 2011, retiring employees shall receive one-half of their
accumulated sick leave based on average hourly straight-time rate at the time of retirement. Police Command
Officers hired on or after July 1, 2011, will not receive a payout of any accumulated sick leave upon retirement.

Upon either retirement or death of Firefighter/EMS employees hired before July 1, 2011, shall receive one-half of
accumulated sick leave up to 1,456 hours for 24-hour employees or up to 1,040 for 40-hour employees, or
prorated proportionately if an employee has sick leave in the bank, at the employee’s regular straight-time hourly
rate of pay at the time of retirement or death. The payoff is limited to 13 weeks of pay. Firefighter/EMS
employees hired on or after July 1, 2011, will not receive unused sick leave payment upon retirement or death.

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave benefits.
There is no liability for nonvested accumulated sick leave. All vacation pays, and vested sick leave is accrued
when incurred in the government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements. The General Fund has
been used to liquidate the liability for compensated absences in prior years.

Deferred Inflows of Resources. In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and/or statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to one
or more future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The
governmental funds also report unavailable revenues, which arise only under a modified accrual basis of
accounting, that are reported as deferred inflows of resources. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an
inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.

Long-Term Obligations. In the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed in
the period incurred. In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs are reported as debt service expenditures.
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City of Alpena

Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. (continued)

Net Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Liability. Beginning in fiscal year 2018, GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, requires governments
providing defined benefit post-employment benefits (other than pensions) to recognize the net OPEB liability and
the OPEB expense on their financial statements. The net OPEB liability is the difference between the total OPEB
liability and the plan’s fiduciary net position. The OPEB expense recognized each fiscal year is equal to the
change in the net OPEB liability from the beginning of the year to the end of the year, adjusted for deferred
recognition of the liability and investment experience. The net OPEB liability is recorded on the government-wide
statements and is computed differently than the prior unfunded actuarial accrued liability, using specific
parameters set forth by the GASB.

Net Pension Liability. Beginning in fiscal year 2015, GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions, requires governments providing defined benefit pensions to recognize the net pension
liability and the pension expense on their financial statements. The net pension liability is the difference between
the total pension liability and the plan’s fiduciary net position. The pension expense recognized each fiscal year is
equal to the change in the net pension liability from the beginning of the year to the end of the year, adjusted for
deferred recognition of the liability and investment experience. The net pension liability is recorded on the
government-wide statements and is computed differently than the prior unfunded actuarial accrued liability, using
specific parameters set forth by the GASB.

Net Position. Net position represents the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition,
construction or improvement of those assets. Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations
imposed on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.

Fund Equity. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report various components of fund balance.
Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the nature of any limitations
requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The following classifications describe the relative strength of
the spending constraints placed on the purposes for which resources can be used:

¢ Nonspendable fund balance-amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory and prepaid
expenditures) or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact;

o Restricted fund balance-amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors,
bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling
legislation;

e Committed fund balance-amounts constrained and formally set aside to specific purposes by a
government itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority the City Council. To be reported
as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same
highest-level action to remove or change the constraint;

e Assigned fund balance-amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be
expressed by the governing body or by the city manager or clerk/treasurer/finance director, who are
authorized by a resolution approved by the governing body to make assignments;

e Unassigned fund balance-amounts that are available for any purpose; positive amounts are reported
only in the General Fund.

The City establishes (and modifies or rescinds) fund balance commitments by passage of a resolution.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 1--Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. (continued)

In the General Fund, the City strives to maintain a minimum unassigned fund balance to be used for unanticipated
emergencies of approximately 10% of the actual GAAP basis expenditures and other financing uses. When
unassigned fund balance approaches its minimum threshold, the following measures will be considered:

e Cut or delay pay-as-you-go capital improvements from the Capital Improvement Plan;
e Cut general operating expenses;

e Increase rates and charges funding specific revenues to make them self-sufficient where possible.

The City has not established a policy for its use of unrestricted fund balance amounts. Therefore, in accordance
with GASB Statement 54, committed amounts would be reduced first, followed by assigned amou